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BOPARAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

Strategic report

The directors present their Strategic Report for the 52 weeks ended 27 July 20189,
Principal activities

Boparan Heldings Limited (the Company) is the parent company which owns, directly or indirectly,
companies constituting the 2 Sisters Food Group of companies (together herein defined as the Group).

The principal activity of the Group is food manufacture with diversified market positions in both own label
and branded products. The Group reports its activities under three divisions of Protein, Chilled and Branded.

Key performance indicators
The Group uses a number of key performance indicators to manage the business:

27 July 28 July

2019 2018
Turnover £2,740.6m £3,339.1m
Operating profit before exceptional items £4.5m £22.1m
EBITDA* £91.7m £118.4m
EBITDA margin % 3.3% 3.5%
Loss hefore taxation (£17.5m} {£5.9m)
Net debt** £631.4m £601.8m
Net debt to EBITDA ratio 6.89x 5.08x

* EBITDA is operating profit including share of operating profit from associates and joint ventures, before depreciation, amertisation,
defined benefit pension scheme administration costs and exceptional items (note 5).

** Net debt comprises bonds, other barrowings and finance leases net of cash. These are stated at period end exchange rates, or
hedged rates where there is an effective exiernal hedge in place {note 28).

In addition to financial key performance indicators the Group monitors and focuses on improving non-
financial key performance indicators on an individual site basis. The Group’s Safety and Governance
Committee closely monitors its over three day Accident Frequency rate, which has decreased by 9.1% to
0.30 in the current period (2018: 0.33). The Safety and Governance Committee are also responsible for
reviewing all matters across health and safety, food safety and legal compliance.



BOPARAN HOLDINGS LIMITED
Strategic report {continued)

Business overview

During the period, the Group reported turnover of £2,740.6m (2018: £3,339.1m) and a pre-exceptional
operating profit of £4.5m {2018: £22.1m). The key drivers of performance during the pericd are set out in
the trading performance section cf this Strategic Report.

Trading performance

The overall turnover decrease of 17,.9% is driven as a result of the continuation of the Group's strategy to
dispose of non-core businesses, The decrease in turnover is driven by a combination of both disposals
made during the year and the lost revenue associated with the disposals made towards the end of the prior
pericd. Disposals aside, sales in the Group's core businesses remain strong, with Like-for-like growth in
both the Poultry and Ready Meals categories driven by volumes. Like-for-like is defined as businesses that
are continuing at the balance sheet date excluding the results of disposed businesses but including closed
sites or businesses. This was partly offset by a decline in Branded Like-for-like revenue.

Group EBITDA of £91.7m (2018: £118.4m) decreased by £26.7m in the period. This is due to the disposals
of businesses affecting the Chilled and Branded segments. Like-for-like EBITDA, after adjusting for
disposals increased by 1.6% YOY. The second half of the year's performance was significantly better than
the first half, driven by turnaround actions taken during 2018/19 as part of our Poultry-Plus stralegy therefore
the outlook for 2018/20 is much brighter.

The Group reported a loss before tax of £17.5m compared to a loss of £5.9m in the prior period. Exceptional
income of £39.9m includes a gain of £63.9m (2018: £117.4m) from business disposals during the year.
Further details on exceptional costs can be found in note 5.

Protein

Sales in the Protein division have declined by 19.6% from £2,338.9m to £1,880.7m. The core reason for this
decrease is the disposal of the 2 Sisters Red Meat business which had revenue of £443m in the prior year.
Sales in the core UK and EU Poultry businesses both saw year-on-year growth. In addition to disposals, the
Group also took the decisian to close its Five Star Fish business in the year. Fish sales in 2018/19 were
£16.0m versus £66.1m in 2017/18.

Operating result before exceptional items has improved by £9.5m from a loss of £16.9m to a loss of £7.4m.
This is driven by impraved performance in Europe and closures of loss making sites in the UK,



BOPARAN HOLDINGS LIMITED
Strategic report (continued)

Trading performance (continued)

Chilled

Sales within the Chilled division have reduced by 4.3% from £609.2m to £582.7m as a result of the Group's
disposal of the Manion Wood sandwich business mid way through the financial year. Like for like results,
excluding disposals shows revenue increased by 7.2%, driven by growth in the Core Meals category where
contracts have been won with a key customer as part of a 5 year partnership agreement.

Operating profit before exceptional items has declined by £9.2m from £16.4m to £7.2m again driven by the
impact of the disposal of Manton Wood sandwich business.

Branded

The Branded division has reported a decrease in sales performance year-on-year of 29.1% from £391.0m
to £277.2m. This was driven by the disposal of Goodfellas pizza during the prior year. Sales in our Fox's
Biscuits business showed a slight decline.

Operating profit before exceptional items has also decreased from £22.6m to £4.7m, again driven by the
disposal of Goodfellas and further driven by cost inflation across our branded businesses.

Restructuring in the Bakery division announced during the final quarter of the year will lower production
costs and overheads in the 2019/20 financial year, improving operating margins.

Financing

Long term funding for the Group is provided primarily through Senior Loan Notes, During the period the
Group repaid £250m of loan notes. The Group has sterling notes totalling £330m maturing in 2021, and a
suro note of £€300m maturing in 2021, The Group halds a cross currency swap against 85% of the euro
denominated Senior Loan Notes, which together with cash flow from European businesses, has significantly
reduced exchange rate exposure.

The Group also has a £80m Revolving Credit Facility maturing in March 2021, and at the balance sheet
date a loan of £53m secured on the assets of Bakery Foods Limited which has been disposed post year
end and the loan repaid.

The Company or its affiliates may from time to time seek to retire or purchase the Company’s outstanding
debt. Such retirements or repurchases, if any, may depend on prevailing market conditions, the Company’'s
liquidity requirements, contractual restrictions and other factors.

Net debt increased during the period to £631.4m (2018: £6801.8m) with a cash balance of £98.8m (2018:
£251.2m). The net debt:EBITDA ratio increased to 6.89 times from 5.08 times due to the reduction in
EBITDA, driven by the impact of disposals.

As the improvements driven by turnaround actions continue into the 2019/20 performance, alongside further
expected margin improvements in the new year, this is expected to reduce further. Further disposals,
including the disposal of Matthew Walker, which compileted post year end will reduce the leverage ratios
further.



BOPARAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

Strategic report (continued)
Pensions

The net deficit for the Group post retirement schemes increased from £269.0m at the prior period end to
£282.4m. The net pension scheme deficit in the balance sheet is stated before deduction of the associated
deferred tax asset of £19.2m (2018: £18.8m), with the deferred tax asset shown separately within current
assets. The increase in the deficit is predominately driven by the performance of scheme assets in the
period. Cash contributions to the defined benefit pension schemes in the period were £23.1m (2018:
£27.1m).

The balance sheet position of the post-retirement benefit schemes and the net pension financing in the profit
and loss account will continue to be unpredictable as discount rates and inflation remain volatile. The net
pensions financing charge was £6.6m (2018: £8.1m) for the period and a further £3.1m {2018: £2.2m) was
charged 1o the profit and loss including scheme administration costs and PPF levy. A further amount of
£11.6m in relation to Gross Minimum Pension Equatisation was alsa recognised in the balance sheet
position of the pension scheme.

All of the Group’s defined benefit schemes in the UK and ireland are closed to future accrual.

Qutlook

The transformation of the business continues and should help drive improved results in the next financial
year. However, there is further work to do to ensure this strategy delivers the improvements we require, and
cost reduction and restructuring are likely to continue for the foreseeable future. Our targeted investments
should also bring returns in the new financial year, and our focus will remain on strengthening our balance
sheet and stabilising core operations.

However, the environment is volatile both in the markets in which we operate and the economy at large.
Brexit continues to present substantial uncertainty for all food processors but we are taking steps to ensure
our business is fit for the future. The Group continues to feel the impact of commodity inflation and has
mechanisms to recover this. The Group has a number of pass through agreements in place with major
retail customers in order to minimise exposure to raw materials inflation, and has plans to add further such
agreements. The Group remains confident in its Pouliry Plus strategy and is committed to its vision of being
a trusted and respected focd company, famous for our quality products and for our people strength.

Principal risks and uncertainties

The Group has robust internal contral and risk management processes, which are designed to provide
assurance but which cannot avoid all risks. Outlined below are potential risks that could impact the Group's
perfarmance, causing actual resulfs to vary from those previously expetienced. These risks are manitored
on an ongoing basis through the Group's risk management processes. Additional risks and uncertainties
not identified may also have an adverse effect on the Group.

Risk area and description of risks ires to reduce risks

Industry risks

difficult 1o speculate on the outcome and therefore what the impaci
might be on the Group. This could present itself as a direct impact
through labour availability issues or commagity inflation driven by
a weakening currency. It could alse manifest more indirectly
through a weakening consumer confidence and ecanomy at large
in the UK, Ireland, Netherlands and Poland leading to reduced
demand. We also expect more valatility in tax and interest rates
in the short and medium term, particularly in a 'Hard Brexit'
scenario,

[n the event of a “Hard Brexit®, the Group has made the necessary

Brexit & Brexit presents significant uncertainty for the food manufacturing
Economic sector as a whole and our business is no exception. Without a | arrangements to ensure continuity of supply. Where appropriate the
uncertainty parliamentary approved withdrawal agreement in place, it is | Group has increased its inventory and explored apportunities to

recuce the impact on the supply chain working with its customers,

The Group has also increased its imernal liquidity requirements to
pravide sufficient headroom within our financial planning.




BOPARAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

Strategic report (continued)

Principal risks and uncertainties (coniinued)

Industry risks (continued)

Customer
relationships

The Group's lop five custormers are lsading UK retailers. The
strength of the major multiple retailers’ bargaining position gives
them significant leverage over their suppliers in dictating pricing,
product specification and the level of supplier participation in
promotional campaigns and offers. The loss of any of these key
custorners, or a significant worsening in commercial terms could
adversely affect the Group's results.

The Group seeks to reduce the risks presented by its consclidated
customer base by ensuring high levels ot service, maintaining strong
commercial relationships and by working closely with customers on
product development programmes o provide each custormner with
unigue products and consumers with greater choice and convenience.
The Group alsa monitors customer credit risk to manage expesure in
the current challenging environment,

Consumer
preferences

Exposure to changing consumer trends can impact profitability.
There are a number of trends in consumer preferences which
impact the industry as a whole. These frends include, amongst
others, dietary concerns (salt, sugar and fat reduction), and
increased convenience and wvalue. Providing or developing
modified or alternative products to meet changing consumer
trends may increase our cosls.

The Group seeks lo manage changes in customer preference by
investing in censumer insight to understand trends in the market and
then adjusting existing product mix or developing new products to
address these trends.

Avian
Influenza

As a manufacturer and Supplier of poultry products to the retail,
food service and feed manufacturing sectors, the Group is at rigk
of an putbreak of Avian influenza, An outbreak could significanily
affect the Groug’s supply of live birds, demand for our peuliry
producis ang our ability to conduct operations.

The Group has developed contingency plans should an cutbreak of
Avian Influenza oceur in close proximity to any of its operating facilities
or on the farms of our principal suppliers, including but not limited to;
area restrictions, additional washing and disinfecting of transport
vehicles and veterinarian checks.

Commeadity
inflation

The Group's margins can be affected by fluctuations in raw
material, packaging and energy costs.

Increases in significant components of our cost base can
adversaly affect individual product margins. An inability to pass on
these cost increases within a reasonable timeframe impacts the
Group's profitability.

The Giroup has pass-through mechanisms in place with key custemers
to share the impact of changes in commodity prices en its margins.
The Group is looking to increase the share of customers on pass
through mechanisms and is reviewing the robustness of those
mechanisms. The Procurement team has a sircng commercial focus
an purchase pricing and guality, in order to proactively respond to
changes in commodity markets. The Group also mitigates these risks
by investing in produclivity enhancements across its sites.

Qperational risks

Food Safety

As a reputable food manufacturer, praduct gquality and safety
issues are paramount to the Group's success.

Failure to maintain the gualily of our products may result in
damage to the reputation of our business, which in turn could
adversely impact our market share and our financial results.

The Group has established policies and procedures in order to manitor
the processes associated with food safety. Food hygiens practices
are taken very seriously throughout the Greup, and are manitored bath
through internal audit procedures and external bodies such as
environmental health departiments, the Food Standards Agency {FSA)
in the UK and our customers. In additicn all sites as part of our
governance programme receive independent unannounced audits,
The group maintains, an independent whistle blower line and in UK
Pouliry there is an emphasis on the mystery worker scheme. The
Greup is committed {0 food safety and hygiene compliance and
ensures regular training of its staff against documented precedures to
support this aim, To further improve the monitoring of production we
have upgraded our CCTV systems and in UK Peultry this system is
being viewed in real time as a virual good manufaciuring audit by
members of eur Quality Assurance team.
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Strategic report (continued)

Principal risks and uncertainties {continued)

Health &
safaty

The Group has a duty of care to secure and protect the Health &
Safety of aur employaes and ta raduce the environmental impact
of our operations. Failure to do could result in a serious workplace
injury or fatality, which could directly impact our employees and
couid also garry serious financial, reputational and legal risk.

The Group has strong health and safety policies and procedures in
ptace. The Group's Leadership team work tagether to promate a
culiure of high slandards and engagement through the workforce.
This is enforced using clear and quantifiable objectives and regular
review by the Safety & Governance Committee of key performance
mezsures, such as Accident Frequency Rales, The Group HAS team
complete governance audits of the sites on a ralling 2 year programme
and sites are also subject 10 independent assessment through our
insurance risk engineers, The group has a strategy to deliver 15O
45001, this standard has been successfully achieved to date for our
Group systems and across ocur meals division

Change
management,
recruitment
and retention

The ongoing success of the Group is dependent an attracting and
retaining high quality employees who have the ability to effectively
manage the Group's operations. Failure to recruit and retain high
quality employees can impact financial results.

The Group mitigates the risk associated with the loss of key personnel
through robust succession planning, strong recruitment processes and
effective management inceniives. The Group continue to invest in
talent and capabiiity by recruiting the best in the industry and by
providing training for all employees. The Group have made several
management changes to help facilitate the change in direction of the
Group.

Financial risks

IT Systems
and Cortrols

The Group relies heavily on information technology and systems
fo suppert our business. An extended failure of our core systems,
caused by accidental or malicious actions {including cyber-crime),
could result in a significant impact on the busingss.

The Group maintains a programme of controls to protect the
confidentiality, integrity and availability of information across the
business.

Pensions

The Group has defined banefit pension plans that are currently in
deficlt (on an actuarial basis). Valuations of all defined benefit
plans ara dependent upon market conditions and the aciuarial
methods and assumptions used. The Group may be required 1o
increase pensien contributions which may have an adverse effect
on its financial condition. Pension regulation could restrict the
freedom of the Group to undertake certain corporate activities
{including disposals and retum of capital ic shareholders).

The Board regularly reviews the value of assets and liakilities of the
Group's pension schemes as well as the patential impact of changes
in actuarial assumptions and actions that can be taken o mitigate the
risks associaled with the defined benefit pension schemas. The UK
and Irish schemes are closed to future benefit accrual. The Group
maintains a good working relationship with the Pension scheme
trustees with whom it agrees a long term funding plan.

Liquidity risk

The Group has committed financing in place, which can only be
withdrawn [n the event of a breach of financing agreement, such
as a breach of financial covenants, when the Group migh be
restricted in its ability to operate normally and could be required to
dispose of assets to pay down debt and incur additional costs.

Liquidity risk is monitored by the Board wha review the adequacy of
available funding and compliance with barrowing covenants on a
monthly basis. No breaches to the Group's borrowing cavenants have
occurmed or are forecast to ocsur. Board policy is to maintain
reasonable headroom of unused committed bank facilities with
maturity at least 12 months beyond the period end.
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Strategic report (continued)
Financlal risk management policies and objectives

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are interest rate risk, liguidity risk and foreign
currency risk. The Board reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below. These policies have remained unchanged since the beginning of the period.

Interest rate risk - The Sentor Loan Notas which comprise the Group's core funding are fixed interest.

Liguidity risk - The Group uses a mixture of fong-term barrowings and short-term cash placement in order
to maintain liquidity and ensure sufficient funds are available for ongoing operations and future
developments.

Foreigh currency risk - The Group manages net foreign exchange exposures in respect of sales and
purchases of its UK and European subsidiaries through short term currency hedges.

The long term bond debt denominated in euros is monitored by the Board. Arrangements have been put in
place to miligate the currency exposure on the euro element of the bond by way of cross currency swaps.
The Group seeks to minimise its exposure fo these risks by using derivative financial instruments where
applicable. The use of derivative financial instruments is governed by Group policies which have been
approved by the Board.

The Group enly enters into trades of financial instruments for specific purpases; speculative purchases are
not made,

Events after the balance sheet date

On 10" October 2019 the Group announced It had reached an agreement to sell its Matthew Walker
Christmas pudding business. This was complated on the 26" October and the business has been sold, On
30t October 2019 the Group enlered into a period of consultation with collegues and their representafives
about the future of the Pennine Foods site in Sheffield.

Going concern

Having considered the Group’s prospects and reasanably foreseen risks over the next twelve months, as
well as the financial positicn of the company's immediate group and uftimate parent and the liquid resources
that are available to the group as a whole, the directors have a reasonable sxpectation that the Group has
adequate resaurces to continue in operational existence for the fareseeable future. Therefore the Group
have continued to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the annual financial statements. Further
details regarding the adoption of the going concern basis can be found in note 1 1o the finandal statements.

Approved by the Board of directors and signed by a director on its behalf

¢A Tomkinson
Director
12 November 2019

e T SUTCAUN



BOPARAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

Directors’ report

The directors present their annual report and the audited financial statements for the 52 weeks ended 27
July 2018,

Directors

The directors of the Company who served during the period ended 27 July 2019 and up to the date of
signing the financial statements are those listed on page 1.

The Group has made qualifying third party indemnity provisions for the benefit of the directors which remain
in force at the date of this report.

Dividends

Ne dividends have been declared or paid for the period ending 27 July 2018. There were also no dividends
declared or paid in respect of the period ending 28 July 2018.

Financial risk management

The financial risks faced by the Group and the measures taken to reduce these risks are addressed within
the Strategic report on page 7 and form part of this report by cross-reference.

Donations

The Group made £0.2m charitable donations during the period (2018: £0.1m) to charities which the directors
deem it appropriate to support.

Future Developments

Details of future prospects of the Group can be found in the Strategic Report on page 5 and form part of this
report by cross-reference. .

Employees
Details of the number of employees and related costs can be found in note 7.

The Group takes its responsibilities to its employees seriously and places great emphasis on optimising the
contribution made by employees at all levels. The Group recognises the value of its employees and seeks
to create an energetic, dynamic and responsive environment in which to work. It places considerable
importance on communications with employees, which occur throughout the organisation on both a formal
and informal basis. The Group’s policy is to provide opportunities for active participation and personal
development, with the goals of motivating individuals and helping them te enhance their skills and maximise
their potential.

The Group is committed to:

. providing equality of opportunity for all existing and potential emplayees. It aims to treat all of its
employees fairly in every aspect of employment;

. ensuring that employees have access to information and training that enables them to contribute and
participate fully in the Group’s achievement of its objectives; and

. providing employees with clear and fair terms of employment and competitive remuneration packages.

The Company uses a variety of methods to enable its employees to understand the performance of the
Group and of their own operating business unit. These include briefing groups, mesetings with employee
representatives, e-mail bulletins and in-house magazines. Employees are consulted on a wide range of
issues affecting their current and future interests, and pariicularly on changes affecting the businesses in
which they work,
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Directors’ report {(continued)

Employees {continued)

Applications for employment by disabled persons are fully considered, bearing in mind the abilities of the
applicant concerned. In the event of members of staff becoming disabled, every effort is made fo ensure
that their employment with the Group continues and that appropriate training is arranged. It is the policy of
the Group that training, career development and promotion of disabled persons should, as far as possibte,
be identical to that of other employees.

Sustainability

Respaonding to todays and future sustainability challenges forms an integral part of our plan to become one
of the world’s leading food companies. To help deliver this, our sustainability strategy sets objectives taking
us through to 2030 and beyond. Each objective fits within one or more of the United Nations, Sustainability
Developrnent Goals, designed to protect the planet and provide a future for the human race. These include
being a leading player in reducing the environmental impact of plastic packaging used by our business,
committing to the Food Waste Reduction Roadmap developed with IGD and WRAP to achieve a 50%
reduction in food waste by 2030, and setting targets to reduce Green House Gasses in both our
manufacturing sites and agriculiure arm. The Group aims 1o be a leading processor in the efficient utilisation
of water and we are working closely with our suppliers to minimise any impact our raw material sourcing
has on the environment. The Group also aims to be the employer of choice within the Food Manufaciuring
Industry and to be welcomed and seen as a key part of the local community in which we operate.

Research and development

Throughout the period the Group invested across the business in food hygiene and product research in the
development of new and enhanced products. The costs incurred in the period of £3.3m {2018: £5.5m)
comprise all directly attributable costs necessary to create and produce new products which are both brand
new in design and those being modified.

Disclosure of information to auditor
Each of the persons who is a director at the date of approval of this report confirms that:

(1) so far as the director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company's auditor is
unaware; and

(2) the director hag taken all the steps that he/she ought to have taken as a director in order to make himself
/herself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company's auditor is aware of that

information.

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of s418 of the
Companies Act 20086.

10



BOPARAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

Directors’ report (continued)

Auditor

Deloitte LLP acted as auditor for the 52 weeks ended 27 July 2019 and have expressed their willingness to
continue in office as auditor of the Company. A resolution propesing their reappoinimant will be submitied
at the Gompany's annual general meeting.

Post balance sheet events

Details of the post balance sheet events can be found in the Strategic Repart on page 8 and form part of
this report by cross-reference.

Going concern

Details of the going concern basis of preparation of the Group can be found in the Strategic Repaort oh page
8 and form part of this report by cross-reterence.

Approved by the Board of directors and signed by a director on its behalf
¥

@F 3*- =

C A Tomkinson
Director
12 Nevember 2018

11



BOPARAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

Directors’ responsibilities statement

The directors are responsible for preparing the annual report and the financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that
law the directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice {(United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law),
including FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland”.

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that
they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company
for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to:

+ select suitabie accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
« make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

- state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

« prepare the financial statements on the gaing concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume
that the company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient o show and
explain the company's transactions and disciose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
positicn of the company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence
for taking reaschable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financtal information
included on the company’s website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may difier from legisiation in other jurisdictions.

12



Independent auditor’s report to the members of Boparan Holdings Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion

In our opinion the financial statements of Boparan Holdings Limited (the 'parent company’} and its
subsidiaries (the ‘group’):

+ give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the parent company’s affairs as at 27 July
2019 and of the group's loss for the year then ended;

¢ have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable
in the UK and Republic of Ireland”; and

* have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 20086.

We have audited the financial statements which comprise:

the consolidated profit and loss account;

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income;

the consolidated and parent company balance sheets;

the consolidated and parent company statements of changes in equity;
the consolidated cash flow statement; and

the related notes 1 to 33.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United
Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 “The Financial Reporting
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland” (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing {UK) {ISAs {UK)) and
applicable law. Qur responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor's
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We are independent of the group and the parent company in accordance with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the Financial Reporting Council's
(the ‘FRC’s’) Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethicai responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusiens relating to geing concern
We are required by 1SAs (UK) to report in respect of the following matters where:

» the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in preparation of the financial
statements is not appropriate; or

« the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties
that may cast significant doubt about the group’s or the parent company’s ability to continue to
adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve maonths from the date

when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.
Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our
opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Boparan Holdings Limited

In connection with our audit of the financial staterments, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or cur knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears te be materially misstated. If we
identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required 10 determine
whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstaterment of the other
information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other informaticn, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.
Responsibilities of directors

As explained mare fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group’s and the parent
company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the group or
the parent company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’'s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with 1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken cn the basis of these
financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's
website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's report.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

« the information given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the financial year for which
the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

s the strategic report and the directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and of the parent company and their
environment obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified any material misstatements in the
strategic report or the directors’ report.

Maiters on which we are required to report by exception
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report in respect of the following matters if, in our opinion:

* gdequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for
our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

» the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and
returns; or

s certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

14



Independent auditot’s report 1o the members of Boparan Holdings Limited

We have nothing fo repart in respect of these matters.
Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 18
of the Companies Act 2006. Cur audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company's
members those matters we are reguired to state to them in an auditor's report and for no cther purpose. To
the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accepi or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
company and the company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed.

e

Christopher Powell FGA (Senior statutory auditor}
For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Statutory Auditor

Leeds, UK

12 November 2019
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BOPARAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

Consolidated profit and loss account
For the 52 weeks ended 27 July 2019

Turnover

Cost of sales

Gross profit
Distribution costs

Administrative expenses:
- before exceptional items

- exceptional items

Total administrative expenses
Operating profit:
- before exceptional items

- exceptional items

Operating profit

Share of operating profit from associate and joint venture

Net finance charge

Loss before taxation

Taxation on loss

Loss for the financial period

Profit / (loss) for the period attributable to:

Non-contralling interest

Equity sharehciders of the Company

Note

52 weeks 52 weeks
ended ended
27 July 27 July
2019 2119
£m £m
2.740.6
(2,368.2)
372.4
{197.8)
(170.1)
39.9
{130.2)
4.5
39.9
44.4
1.3
(63.2)
(17.5)
2.4
{15.1)
0.5
{15.6)
(15.1)

52 weeks 52 weeks
ended ended
28 July 28 July
2018 2018
£m £m
3,338.1
{2,897.0)
442 1
(215.0)
(205.0)
30.8
{174.2)
22.1
30.8
52.9
1.5
{60.3)
{5.9)
5.2
{0.7)
0.4
{1.1)
{0.7)
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BOPARAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
For the 52 weeks ended 27 July 2019

Note
Loss for the financial peried
Cash flow hedges:
Gains arising during the peried
Less: reclassified to profit and loss 4

Disposal of operations
Remeasurement of net defined benefit pension liability 30
Currency translation difference on foreign currency net investments

Tax relating to components of other comprehensive income ]
Other comprehensive expense for the period

Total comprehensive loss for the period

Total comprehensive profit / (loss) for the pericd attributable to:

Non-contralling interest

Equity shareholders of the Company

52 weeks 52 weeks
ended ended
27 July 28 July
2019 2018
£m £m
{15.1} {0.7)
1.8 6.4
(2.4) (3.2

- (1.2)

(14.9) 37.5
{1.6) 31
17.1) 42,6
(0.9) (61.0)
(18.0) {18.4)
(33.1) {19.1)

“ 0.4

{33.1) (19.5)
{33.1) (19.1)

17



BOPARAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

Consolidated balance sheet
At 27 July 2019

Fixed assets
tntangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets
Investment in associate
Investment in joint venture

Current assels
Inventories
Debtors
Deferred tax asset due after more than one year
Cash at bank and in hand

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Net current (liabilities)/ assets

Total assets less current lizbilities

Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

Provisions for liabilities

Net liabilities excluding pension labillty
Pension schame net deficit
Net liabilities
Capital and reserves
Galled up share capital
Share premium account
Cash flow hedge rescrve
Profit and loss account
Shareholdars’ deficit

Man-controlling interest

Total capital employed

The financia! statements of Boparan Holdings Limited were approved by the board of directors and
authorised for issue on 12 November 2019, They were sighed on its. behalf by:

A

i
Y

G A Tomkinson
Director
Company Number 03558065

Note

12
13
i4
14

16

18

19

20

22

30

25
25

27 July 28 July
2018 2018
£m £m
2158.8 287.0
389.6 405.5
5.6 5.3
2.9 1.8
617.9 6987
101.4 108.5
194.6 236.0
54.0 47.3
99.8 251.2
448.8 §43.0
{488.5) (777.2)
(38.7) (134.2)
578.2 565.5
(663.9) {613.1)
(23.9) {41.3)
(108.6) {88.9)
(282.4} (268.0)
(391.0) (357.9)
132.8 132.8
{4.1) (3.6
{521.5) {488.9)
{393.0) {359.9)
2.0 2.0
{391.0) {357.9)
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BOPARAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

Consolidated statement of changes in equity

At 27 July 2019
Equity attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
Called-up Share Cash Profit and Non- Total
share premium flow - loss centrolling capital
capital account hedge accotirt interest employed
£m £m £m £m £m £m
At 29 July 2017 - 132.6 (9.3) (463.7) 1.6 {338.8)
(Loss) / profit for the financial period - - - (1.1) 0.4 {6.7)
Cash flow hedges:
Gains arising during the period - - 6.4 - - 6.4
Less: reclassified to profit and loss
(note 4) ) i (3:2) i ) (3:2)
Disposal of operations - - - {1.2) - {1.2)
Remeasurement of net defined benefit
pension liability {(note 30) ) ) ) 37.5 - 87.5
Currency translation difference on 39 3.1
foreign currency net investments T ) ) : . :
Tax relating to components of other _
comprehensive income (note 9) ) | 2.5 (83.5) (61.0)
Total comprehensive income /
(expense) - - 5.7 {25.2) 0.4 {(19.1)
At 28 July 2018 ~ 132.6 (3.6) (488.9) 2.0 {357.9)
(Loss) / profit for the financial period - - - {15.6) 0.5 {15.1)
Cash flow hedges:
Gains arising during the period - - 1.8 - - 1.8
Less: reclassified to profit and losg
{note 4) - - {2.4) - i {2.4)
Remeasurement of net defined benefit
pension liabiiity (note 30) - - - (14.9) i (14.9)
Currency translation difference on
foreign currency net investments ) ) ) (1.1) (0.5) (1.8)
Tax relating to components of other
comprehensive income (nate 9) ) ) 0.1 {1.0) ) (0.9)
Total comprehensive expense - - (0.5) (32.8) - (33.1)
At 27 July 2019 - 132.6 (4.1 (521.5) 2.0 (391.0)
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BOPARAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

Consolidated cash flow statement
For the 52 weeks ended 27 July 2019

52 weeks 52 weeks

ended ended
27 July 28 July
2019 2018
Note £m £m

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 26 {33.3) 69.4
Taxation paid (1.5) (4.6}
Net cash flows from operating activities (34.8) 64.8

Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from the sale of tangible fixed assets 0.7 0.9
Purchase of intangihle fixed assats (0.7} (0.4}
Purchase of tangible fixed assets (68.4) {50.8)
Disposal of operations 133.1 237.5
Acquisition of trade and assets - (6.2)
Dividends (paid) / received from Associate (0.5) 0.4
Capital granis received - 0.5
Net cash flows from investing activities 64.2 182.1

Cash flows from financing activities
Repayments of obligations under finance leases (7.9) {9.5)
Receipts from finance leases 0.5 1.2
New loans received 131.7 1.1
Redemption of bonds (250.0) -
Disposal of derivative instrument 3.7 -
Interest paid (59.4) (54.4)
Net cash flows from financing activities (181.4) {61.6)
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents . 26,27 {152.0) 185.3
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BOPARAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

Consolidated cash flow statement
For the 52 weeks ended 27 July 2019

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the
period

Net {decrease) / Increase jn cash and cash equivalents during the period

Effect of fareign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period

Reconciliation to cash at bank and in hand:
Cash at bank and in hand

Cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents

Note

28

52 weeks 52 weeks
ended ended
27 July 28 July
2019 2018
£m £m
251.2 66.1
{152.0) 185.3
0.6 (0.2)
99.8 251.2
99,8 251.2
99.8 251.2
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BOPARAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

Company balance sheet

At 27 July 2019
27 July 28 Juiy
2019 2018
Nate £m £m
Fixed assets
Investments 14 144.9 144.8
Current assets
Debtors 17 1,248.0 1,396.1
Deferred tax asset due aiter more than one year 9.2 0.8
Cash at bank and in hand 17.9 55.0
1,275.1 1,451.9
Creditors: amounts falling due within cna year 19 {693.0) (842.0)
Met current assels 5821 6049.9
Total assets less current llabllities 727.0 754.8
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year 20 (593.7) (597.0)
Net assets 127.3 157.8
Gapltal and reserves
Called up share capital ) a5 - -
Share premium account 25 132.6 132.8
Cash fiow hedpe reserve {4.3) (3.8)
Profil and loss account {1.0) 29.0
Shareholders’ funds 127.3 157.8

The loss for the financial year dealt with in the financial statements of the parent Company was £30.0m
(2018: loss of £14.5m).

The financial statements of Baparan Holdings Limitad were approved by the beard of directors and
authorised for'issue on 12 November 2018. They were signed on its behalf by:
!

C A Tomkinson
Director
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BOPARAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

Company statement of changes in equity

At 27 July 2019

At 29 July 2017

Loss for the financial period
Cash flow hedges:
Gains arising during the period

Less: reclassified to profit or loss
Tax relating to components of other
comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income / {(expense)

At 28 July 2018

Loss for the financial period
Cash flow hedges:

Gains arising during the pericd
Less: reclassified to profit or loss
Tax relating to companents of other

comprehensive income

Total comprehensive expense

At 27 July 20189

Equity attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

Called- Share Cash flow Profit Total
up share premium hedge and loss capital
capital account reserve account employed
£m £m £m £m £m
- 132.6 (9.5) 43.5 166.6
- - B (14.5) {14.5)
- - 6.4 - 6.4
- - (3.2) - (3.2)
- - 2.5 - 2.5
- - 5.7 {14.5) (8.8)
- 132.6 (3.8} 29.0 157.8
- - - (30.0) (30.0)
- - 1.8 ) 1.8
- - (2.4) i (2.4)
- - 0.1 - 0.1
- - (0.5) (30.0} (30.5)
- 1326 (4.3 {1.0) 127.3
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BOPARAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements
For the 52 weeks ended 27 July 2019

1. Accounting policies

Basis of accounting

Boparan Holdings Limited is a company incorporated in the United Kingdom and prepares its financial
stataments under the Companies Act 2008. The Company is a private company limited by shares and is
registered in England and Wales. The address of the Company’s registered office is shown on page 1.

The nature of the group’s operations and its principal activities are set out in the strategic report.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, medified to include certain
items at fair value, and in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 102 (FRS102) issued by the

Financial Reporting Council.

The functional currency of the Company is considered to be pounds sterling, because that is the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the Company operates. These financial statements are alsc
presented in pounds sterling.

Parent company disclosure exemptions

Boparan Holdings Limited meets the definition of a qualifying entity under FRS 102 and has therefore taken
advantage of the following disclosure exemptions available to it in respect of its separaie financial
statements, which are presented alongside the consclidated financial staterenis:

¢ Only one reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the period has
been presented as the reconciliations for the group and the parent company would be identical;

¢ No cash flow statement has been presented for the parent company;

¢ Disclosures in respect of the parent company's financial instruments and share-based payment
arrangements have not been presented as equivalent disclosures have been provided in respect of the
group as a whole; and

* No disclosure has been given for the aggregate remuneration of the key management personnel of the
parent company as their remuneration is inciuded in the totals for the group as a whole.

The Company is consolidated in the financial statements of iis ultimate parent, Boparan Holdce Limited,
which may be obtained from their registered office at Colmore Court, 9 Calmore Row, Birmingham, B3 2BJ.

Basis of consolidation

The Group financial statements consolidate the financial statements of the Company and all of its subsidiary
undertakings at 27 July 2019 using acquisition accounting.

The results of subsidiary undertakings acquired or disposed of during a financial pericd are included from,
or up to, the effective date of an acquisition or disposal.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.
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BOPARAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the 52 weeks ended 27 July 2019

1. Accounting policies {continued)

Going concern

In determining whether the Group’s annual consolidated financial statements can be prepared ¢n a going
concern basis, the directors considered the Group’s business activities, together with the factors likely to
affect its future development, performance and pasition. The review included the financial position of the
Group, its cash flows, liquidity position, borrowing facilities and covenants. The key factors considered by
the directors were as follows:

> consideration of detailed forecasts prepared for the 12 month period from the date of approval of the
financial statements and the application of sensitivities to those forecasts;

> the implications of the challenging economic environment and future uncertainties cn the Group’s
revenues and profits and its ability to meet financial covenants;

> the impact of the competitive environment within which the Group's businesses operate;

> the potential actions that could be taken in the event that revenues or margins are worse than
expected, to ensure that operating profit and cash flows are protected; and

> the Group has access to a committed bank facility to meet day to day working capital requirements.

As at the date of this report, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company and Group have
adequale resaurces to continue in business for the foreseeable future being a period of not less than 12
months from the date of approval of these financial statements.

Accordingly, the annual report and financial statements for the 52 weeks ended 27 July 2018 have been
prepared on the going concern basis.

Turnover

Turnover is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, and represents amounts
receivable for goods and services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts, Value Added
Tax {VAT) and ather sales related taxes.

The Group provides trade discounts, primarily in the form of rebate arrangements or other incentive
arrangements, to its customers. The arrangements can take the form of volume related rebates, marketing
fund contributions, promotional fund contributions or lump sum incentives. The Group recognises revenue
net of such discounts over the period to which the arrangement applies.

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered and title has passed, and to the extent that sales
are invoiced in advance of delivery, income is deferred.

Supplier rebates

The Group enters into rebate arrangements with its suppliers. The arrangements are primarily volume
related. The supplier rebates received are recognised as a deduction from cost of sales (or administration or
distribution costs if more appropriate), based on the entitlement that has been earned up to the balance
sheet date, for each relevant supplier arrangement.

Net financing charges

Interest income is accrued by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life
of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount.

Finance costs of financial liabilities are recognised in the profit and loss account over the term of such
instruments at the effective interest rate applicable on the carrying amount.

The netimpact of the unwinding of the discount rate on the net pension scheme liability is charged to interest
payable in the profit and loss account.
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BOPARAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the 52 weeks ended 27 July 2019

1. Accounting policies (continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs that an antity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
The group has not adopted the policy of capitalising borrowing costs, and therefore all borrowing costs are
recognised as an expense in profit or toss in the period in which they are incurred.

Research and development

Research and development costs are expensed in the pericd to which they relate. Costs comprise al! directly
atiributable costs necessary to create and produce new products which are both brand new in design and
those being madified. Costs classified as research and development include raw materials, labour costs,
artwork crigination and market research directly attributable to developing the product.

Government grants

Grants relating to revenue are recognised in income over the period in which the related cosis are
recognised. Grants relating to assets are recognised over the expected useful life of the asset. Where part
of a grant relating to an asset is deferred, it is recognised as deferred income.

Exceptional items

In order to ensure comparability between the Group’s results year on year, the Directors present certain
items separately in exceptional items, so that the reader of the accounts can better understand the underlying
performance of the business.

The decision to present an itemn as highlighted is a judgement of the Directors and is reserved for items of a
non-recurring nature, or of a such significant size that they would materially distort the results of any particular
period.

Foreign currencies
(a)  Functional and presentation currency

The individual financial statemenis of each Group company are presented in the currency of the primary
eccnomic environment in which it operates (its functional currency). For the purpose of the consolidated
financial statements, the results and financial position of each Group company are expressed in pounds
sterling, which is the functional currency of the Gompany, and the presentation currency for the consolidated
financial statements.

{b)  Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rate of exchange at the date of the transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance shest date are reported at
the rates of exchange prevailing at that date.

{c) Group companies
The results of overseas operations are translated at the average rates of exchange during the peried and
their balance sheets at the rates ruling at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences on translation of the

opening net assets and results of overseas operations are reported in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity (attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

Other exchange differences are recognised in profit and loss in the period in which they arise except for:

exchange differences on transactions entered into to hedge ceriain foreign currency risks;
exchange differences arising on gaing or losses on non-monetary items which are recognised in
other comprehensive income; and

® in the case of the consoclidated financial statements, exchange differences on monetary items
raceivable from or payable to a foreign operation for which settfement is neither planned nor likely
to occur (thereby forming part of the net invesiment in the foreign operation}, which are recognised
in other comprehensive income and reported under equity,
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BOPARAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the 52 weeks ended 27 July 2019

1, Accounting policies (continued)

Taxation

Current tax, both UK and overseas, is recognised for the amounts payable (or receivable) in respect of the
taxable profit for the current or past reporting periods using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted
or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of all timing differences that have originated but not reversed at the
balance sheet date where transactions or events that result in an obligation to pay more tax in the future or
a right to pay less tax in the future have occurred at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that, on the basis of all available evidence, it can be
regarded as more likely than not that there will be suitable taxable profits from which the future reversal of
the underlying timing differences can be deducted.

When the amount that can be deducted for tax for an asset (other than goodwill) that is recognised in a
business combination is less / (more) than the value at which it is recognised, a deferred tax liability / (asset)
is recognised for the additional tax that wiil be paid / (avoided] in respect of that difference.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for timing differences arising from investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the timing difference and it is probable
that it will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is measured using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the balance sheet date that are expected to apply to the reversal of the timing difference. The measurement
of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.

Where items recognised in other comprehensive income or equity are chargeable to or deductible for tax
purposes, the resulting current or deferred tax expense or income is presented in the same component of
comprehensive income or equity as the transaction or other event that resulted in the tax expense or income.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts
and the Group intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and setile the liability
simuitaneously,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if:

(a) the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities;
and

(b) the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate 10 income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either to
settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, in each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets
are expected to be settled or recovered.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on acquisition, representing the difference between the cost and the fair value of the net
assels acquired in a business combination is capitalised in the period of acquisition and written off on a
straight line basis over its usefui economic life which is estimaied to be twenty years. Provision is made for
any impairment.

Goodwill is carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Negative goodwill is credited to the profit and loss account in the periods in which the acquired non-monetary
assets are recovered through depreciation or sale. Negative goodwill in excess of the fair value of non-
monetary assets acquired is credited to the profit or loss account in the petiod it is expected to benefit.
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BOPARAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the 52 weeks ended 27 July 2019

1. Accounting policies {continued)

Software

Software separately acquired, including computer software which is not an integral part of an item of
hardware, is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation. Cost comprises purchase price and other directly
attributable costs.

Software is recognised as an asset cnly if it meets the following criteria:
s an asset can be separately identified;
+ itis probable that the asset created will generate future economic benefits;

= jtis probable that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to
the entity; and

» the development cost / acquisition cost of the asset can be reliably measured.

Costs relating to the development of software for internal use are capitalised once the recognition criteria
outlined above are met.

Software is amortised over its expected useful life, which ranges from three to seven years, Amortisation
commences when the asset is ready for use.
Tangible fixed assets and depreciation

Tangible fixed assets are stated at historical cost, less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to bringing the asset to
the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

No depreciation is provided on land. Depreciation on other assets is charged so as to allocate the cost of
assets less their residual value over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The principal
annual rates used for other assets are:

Freehold properties 2% - 5%
Leasehold properties 2% - 20%
Plant, fixtures and motor vehicles 6.66% - 25%

Residual value represents the estimated amount which would currently be obtained from disposal of an
asset, after deducting estimated costs of disposal, if the asset were already of the age and in the condition
expected at the end of its useful life.

Leased assets

Assets held under finance leases, hire purchase contracts and other similar arrangements, which confer
rights and obligations similar to those attached to owned assets, are capitalised as tangible fixed assets at
the fair value of the leased asset {or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments as
determined at the inception of the lease) and are depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and their

useful lives.
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BOPARAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the 52 weeks ended 27 July 2019

1, Accounting policies (continued)

Leased assets (continued)

The capital elements of the future lease obligations are recorded as liabilities, while the interest elements
are charged to the profit and loss account over the period of the leases to produce a constant periodic rate
of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

Rentals under operating leases are charged on a straight-line basis over the lease term, even if the payments
are not made on such a basis. Benefits received and receivable as an incentive io sign an operating lease,
are similarly spread on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Sale and leaseback

When a sale and leaseback transaction resuits in a finance lease no gain is immediately recognised for any
excess of sales proceeds over the carrying amount of the asset. Instead, the proceeds are presented as a
liability and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

When a sale and leaseback transaction results in an operating lease, and i is clear that the transaction is
established at fair value, any profit or loss is recognised immediately. If the sale price is below fair value,
ahy profit or loss is recoghised immediately uniess the loss is compensated for by future lease payments at
below market price. In that case any such loss is amortised in proportion te the lease payments over the
period for which the asset is expected to be used. If the sale price is above fair value, the excess over fair
value is amartised over the period for which the asset is expected to be used.

Onerous leases

Where the unavoidable costs of a lease exceed the economic benefit expected to be received from it, a
provision is made for the present value of the obligations under the lease. This is released over the remaining
lease term.

Impairment of assets

Assets, other than those measured at fair value, are assessed for indicators of impairment at each balance
sheet date. If there is objective evidence of impairment, an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss as

described below.
Non-financial assets

An asset is impaired where there is cbjective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred
after initial recognition, the estimated recoverable value of the asset has been reduced. The recoverable
amount of an asset is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.

The recoverable amount of goodwill is derived from measurement of the present value of the future cash
flows of the cash-generating units of which the goodwill is a part. Any impairment loss in respect ¢f a CGU
is allocated first to the goodwill attached to that CGU, and then to other assets within that CGU on a pro-rata

basis.

Where indicators exist for a decrease in impairment loss previously recognised for assets other than goodwill,
the prior impairment loss is tested to determine reversal. An impairment loss is reversed on an individual
impaired asset to the extent that the revised recoverable value does not lead to a revised carrying amount
higher than the carrying valua had no impairment been recognised. Where a reversal of impairment occurs
in respect of a CGU, the reversal is applied first to the assets of the CGU, except for goodwill, on a pro-rata
basis. Impairment of goedwill is never reversed.

Financial assets
For financiai assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of an impairment is the difference between the
asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s coriginal effective interest rate.
For financial assets carrfed at cost less impairment, the impairment loss is the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the bast estimate of the amount that would be raceived for the asset if it were to be
sold at the reporting date.
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1. Accounting policies (continued)

Impairment of assets (continued)

Where indicators exist for a decrease in impairment loss, and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recegnised, the prior impairment loss is tested to determine
reversal. An impairment loss is reversed on an individual impaired financial asset to the extent that the
revised recoverable value does not lead to a revised carrying armount higher than the carrying value had no
impairment been recognised.

Investments
in the Company balance sheet, investments in subsidiaries are measured at cost [ess impairment.

Associates

In the Group financial statements, investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method.
Investments in associates are initially recognised at the transaction price (including transaction costs) and
are subsequently adjusted to reflect the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income
of the associate.

Joint ventures

In the Group financial statements, investmenis in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity
method. The consolidated profit and loss account includes the Group’s share of the joint venture's profits
less losses, with the Group’s share of the net assets of the joint venture being shown in the consolidated
balance sheet.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value, Cost is calculated using the FIFO (first-
in, first-out) method and comprises direct materials and, where applicable, direct labour costs and those
overheads that have been incurred bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price less all estimated costs of completion and costs to be
incurred in marketing, selling and distribution. Provision is made for cbsolete, slow moving or defective

inventory where appropriate.
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.

Financial assets and liabilities

All financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at transaction price {including transaction costs),
except for those financial assets classified as at fair value through profit or loss, which are initially measured
at fair value {which is normally the transaction price excluding transaction costs), unless the arrangement
consfifutes a financing transaction. If an arrangement caonstitutes a financing transaction, the financial asset
or financial liability is measured at the present value of the future payments discounted at a market rate of
interest for a similar debt instrument.

Financial assets and liabilities are anly offset in the statement of financial position when there exists a legally
anforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and the Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Debt instruments which meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method:

a) The contractual return to the holder is (i) a fixed amount; (i) a positive fixed rate or a positive variable
rate; or (iif) a combination of a positive or a negative fixed rate and a positive variable rate.
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1. Accounting policies (continued)
Financial assets and liabilities {continued)

b) The contract may provide for repayments of the principal or the return to the holder {but not both) to
be linked to a single relevant observable index of general price inflation of the currency in which the
debt instrument is denominated, provided such links are not leveraged.

c) The contract may provide for a determinable variation of the return to the holder during the life of the
instrument, provided that (i) the new rate satisfies condition (a) and the variation is not contingent
on future events other than (1) a change of a contractual variable rate; (2) to protect the holder
against credit deterioration of the issuer; (3) changes in levies applied by a central bank or arising
from changes in relevant taxation or law; or {ii) the new rate is a market rate of interest and satisfies
conditian (a).

d) There is no contractual provision that couid, by its terms, result in the holder losing the principal
amount or any interest attributable to the current period ar priar periods.

e) Contractual provisions that permit the issuer to prepay a debt instrument or permit the holder to put
it back to the issuer before maturity are not contingent on future evenis, other than to protect the
holder against the credit deterioration of the issuer or a change in control of the issuer, or to protect
the holder or issuer against changes in levies applied by a central bank or arising from changes in
relevant taxation or law.

fy Contractual provisions may permit the extension of the term of the debt instrument, provided that
the return to the holder and any other contractual provisions appticable during the extended term
satisfy the conditions of paragraphs (a) to (c).

Debt instruments that have no stafed interest rate {(and do not constitute financing transaction) and are
classified as payable or receivable within one year are initially measured at an undiscounted amount of the
cash or other consideration expected to be paid or received, net of impairment.

With the exception of some hedging instruments, other debt instruments not meeting these conditions are
measured at fair value through profit or loss,

Commitments to make and receifve foans which meet the conditions mentioned above are measured at cost
(which may be nil) less impairment.

Financial assets are derecognised when and anly when {a) the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire or are settled, (b) the Group transfers to another party substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, or (c) the Group, despite having retained some, but not all,
significant risks and rewards of ownership, has transfetred control of the asset to another party.

Financial liabilities are derecognised only when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expires.

Derivative financial instruments

The Group uses derivative financial instruments to reduce exposure to foreign exchange risk and interest
rate movements. The Group does not hald or issue derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the dale a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at each reporting date. The resulting gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective as a hedging instrument, in
which event the timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of the hedge relationship.

The best evidence of fair value is a quoted price for an identical asset in an active market. When quoted
prices are unavailable, the price of a recent transaction for an identical asset provides evidence of fair value
as long as there has not been a significant change in economic circumstances or a significant fapse of time
since the transaction took place. If the markst is not active and recent transactions of an identical asset on
their own are not a good estimate of fair value, the fair value is estimated by using a valuation technigue.
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1. Accounting policies (continued)
Hedge accounting
The Group designates some of its derivatives as hedging instruments in cash flow hedges.

At the inception of the hedge relationship, the Group documents the economic relationship between the
hedging instrument and the hedged itern, along with its risk management objectives and clear identification
of the risk in the hedged item that is being hedged by the hedging insirument. Furthermore, at the inception
of the hedge, the Group determines and documents causes for hedge ineffectiveness.

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow
hedges is recognised in other comprehensive income. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is
recognised immediately in profit or loss. Amounts previously recognised in cther comprehensive income and
accumuiated in equity are reclassified to profit or loss in the periods in which the hedged item affects profit
or loss or when the hedging relationship ends.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Group revokes the hedging relationship, the hedging instrument
expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting. Any gain or loss
accumulated in equity at that time is reclassified to profit or loss when the hedged item is recognised in profit
or loss. When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, any gain or loss that was recognised in
other comprehensive income is reclassified immediately to profit or loss.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the fair value of cash or other resources received,
net of direct issue costs.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, and it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation. Provisions are measured
at their present value and at the directors’ best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation
at the balance sheet date.

Pension schemes
Defined conlribution pension schemes

For defined contribution schemes the amount charged to the profit and loss account in respect of pension
costs and other post-retirement benefits is the contributions payable in the pericd. Differences between
contributions payable in the period and contributions actually paid are shown as either accruals or
prepayments in the balance sheet.

Defined benefit pension schemes

The Group operates a number of defined benefit pension schemes; the UK and Irish schemes are closed to
future benefit accrual.

For defined benefit schemes, the amounts charged to operaling profit are the costs arising from settiements
and curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs.

The net interest cost on the net defined benefit liability is charged to profit or loss and included within finance
costs. Remeasurement comprising actuarial gains and losses and the return on scheme assets (excluding

amounts included in net interest on the defined benefit liability) are recognised immediately in other
comprehensive income. Costs of administering the closed defined benefit schemes are charged to
administration costs.

Defined benefit schemes are funded, with the assets of the scheme held separately from those of the Group,
in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and liabilities are
measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method. Full actuarial valuations are obtained
at least triennially and are updated at each balance sheet date.
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1. Accounting policies {continued)
Pension schemes {continued)
Post-retirement healthcare

The Group provides post-retirement healthcare benefits to eligible employees who retired before 31 March
1999, The expected cost of this benefit has been computed using an accounting methodology similar to that
for defined benefit pension schemes. Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments, and
changes in actuarial assumptions, are recognised in full in the petiod in which they occur. They are
recognised outside the profit and loss account and presented in the statement of total recognised gains and
losses. These obligations are valued annually for the purpose of the financial statements by independent
qualified actuaries,

Dividends

Dividend distributions to the Company's shareholders are recognised in the Group and Company financial
statements as follows:

> Final dividend: when approved by the Company's shareholders at the annual general meeting;
> Interim dividend: when paid by the Company.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have
been established (provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of revenue can be measured refiably).

Reserves

The Group and Company's reserves are as follows:

S Called up share capital reserve represents the nominal value of the shares issued.
> The share premium account includes the premium on issue of equity shares, net of any issue costs.
> The cash flow hedge reserve represents the cumulative portion of gains and lesses on hedging

instruments deemed effective in hedging foreign exchange risk. Amounts accumulated in this reserve
are reclassified to profit or loss in the periods in which the hedged item affects profit or loss or when
the hedging relationship ends.

> Profit and loss account represents cumulative profits or losses, net of dividends paid and other
adjustments.

Related party transactions

The Group has taken advantage of the exemption under FRS 102 Section 33.1A 'Related Party Disclosures’
and has not disclosed transactions or balances between wholly owned subsidiary undertakings.
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2, Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are described in note 1, the directors are required
to make judgements {other than those involving estimations) that have a significant impact on the amounts
recognised and to make estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that
are net readily apparent from other sources. The sstimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factars that are considered to be relevant. Actual resuits may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptioné are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision aftects only that period,
or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting pelicies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations {which are dealt with
separately below), that the directors have made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies
and that have the most signiticant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Inventories

The Group reviews the market value of and demand for its inventories on a periodic basis to ensure that
recorded inventory is stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. In assessing the ultimate realisable
value of inventaries, the Group is required to make judgements as to future demand requirements and to
compare these with current inventory levels. Factors that could impact estimated demand and selling prices
include the timing and success of product ranges.

Key source of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of astimation uncertainty at the balance
sheet date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed below.

Defined benefit pension schemes

The Group operates a number of defined benefit pension schemes. The actuarial valuations of these
schemes are reliant on a number of assumptions, including the discount rate, the infiation rate and the
mortality rate. The assumptions applied as part of these valuations are based on forecasted trends and are
closely monitored by the Group.

The most recent actuarial valuations of these schemes and the present value of the defined benefit
obligations for the purpose of the financial statements were carried out at 27 July 2019 by independent
qualified actuaries. The directors have conducted sensitivity analysis around the key assumptions; if the
discount rate were to increase by 0.1%, this could decrease the pension scheme net deficit by approximately
£26.0m. Further details of the principal actuarial assumptions used in calcuiating the defined benefit pension
deficit are given in note 30.
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2. Critical aceounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Key source of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Recognition of deferred tax assets

The Group recognised a deferred tax assst of £54.0m (2018: £47.3m) at the period end. The recognition of
deferred {ax assets is based upon whether it is probabile that sufficient and suitable taxable profits will be
available in the future against which the reversal of temporary differences can be deducted. The total
deferred tax asset of £142.6m (2018: £128.2m) relates to timing differences on pensions, capital allowances,
short term timing differences, corporate interest expense and capital losses. Of this amount £54.0m (2018:
£47.3m) has been recognised on pensicns, capital alfowances, short term timing differences and corporate
interest expense. Recegnition involves judgement regarding the future financial performance of the
particular legal entity or tax group in which the deferred tax aset has been recognised. The Group has
considered the impact and assumptions used in these calculations and has conducted sensitivity analysis to
ensure the recognition of these deferred tax assets is appropriate. Defails of deferred tax assets including
amounts recognised at the period end can be found in note 18.

Customer rebates

The Group provides rebate arrangements or other incentive arrangements, to its customers. In assessing
provisions required for these arrangements, the Group carefully monitors the sales levels and ensures that
provisions are in line with all agreements in place with each customer.

The Group uses estimation techniques to assess performance against growth targets for third party
agreements with non-coterminus year ends.

Impairment of goodwill, iniangible and iangible assets

When determining whether assets are impaired, the recoverable amount of assets are determined based on
the higher of net realisable value and value-in-use calculations. The value-in-use calcuiation requires an
estimate of the future cash flows expected to arise from each cash-generating unit, along with a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate present value. The Group has considered the impact of the assumptions
used on these calculations and has conducted sensitivity anaiysis to ensure these carrying values are
appropriate. The sensitivity analysis includes the modelling of future outcomes within management control.

The directors consider the recoverable value of goodwill, intangibles and fixed assets allocated to the UK
poultry cash generating unit to be mast sensitive due to the performance in the current year. The sensitivity
analysis performed on this cash generating unit includes the madelling of future initiatives which are within
management conitrol and which should result in an upturn in future performance. Management have been
successful in delivering initiatives in the current year and will continue to monitor the UK poultry cash
generating unit for indicators of impairment.

Derivative financial instruments

The Group uses derivative financial instruments to reduce its exposure to foreign exchange movements. As
there is no active market for these derivative financial instruments to determine the fair value, the Group has
engaged an independent external specialist to calculate their fair value using recognised market equivalent
valuation techniques.

As part of the valuation exercise, assumptions have been made regarding foreign exchange rates, interest
rates and credit risk. These assumptions are closely monitored by the Group and benchmarked against
valuations from the respective banks providing each detivative.

For further infarmation pease see note 24 of these financial statements.
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3. Turnover and segmental information

52 weeks ended 27 July 2019

Protein

Chilled

Branded

Unallocated amounts:

Exceptional items

Share of operating profit from associate and joint
venture

Net finance charge

Loss before taxation

Taxation on loss

Loss for the financial period

52 weeks ended 28 July 2018

Protein

Chilled

Branded

Unallocated amounts:

Exceptional items

Share of operating profit from associate and joint
venture )

Net finance charge

Loss before taxation

Taxation on loss

Loss for the financial period

Operating profit
(pre-exceptional

Turnover items)

Note £m £m
1,880.7 (7.4)
582.7 7.2
277.2 4.7
2,740.6 4.5
5 39.9
14 1.3
4 {63.2)
6 (17.5)
9 2.4
(15.1)

Operating profit

{pre-exceptional

Turnover items)

Note £m £m

2,338.9 (16.9)

609.2 16.4

391.0 22,6

3,339.1 22.1

5 30.8
14 1.5
4 (60.3)
6 (5.9)
9 5.2
{0.7)

All turnover relates to the Group’s principal activity of food manufacturing.

EEsaa— —————
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3. Turnover and segmental information (continued)

The following is a reconciliation of EBITDA from operating profit:

52 weeks 52 weeks

ended ended

27 July 2019 28 July 2018

£m £m

Note

Opetating profit 44.4 52.9

Exceptional items 5 (39.9) {(30.8)

Pension scheme administration costs 30 3.1 2.2

Share of operating profit from associate and joint venture 14 1.3 1.5

Depreciation 13 60.4 64.0

Amortisation of intangible assets 12 22.4 28.6

EBITDA 91.7 118.4
Protein Chilled Branded Group
Other information - 52 weeks ended 27 July 2019 £m £m £m £m
Depreciation 38.2 14.3 7.9 60.4
Impairment of tangible fixed assets 0.3 - - 0.3
Amortisation of intangible assets 7.8 6.9 7.7 22.4
Protein Chilled Branded Group
Other information - 52 weeks ended 28 July 2018 £m £m £m £m
Depreciation 38.6 15.0 10.4 64.0
Impairment of tangible fixed assets 0.6 2.7 - 3.3
Impairment of goodwill - 31.6 - 31.6
Amortisation of iniangible assets 7.4 12.3 8.9 28.6
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3. Turnover and segmental information (continued)

Protein
GChilled
Branded

Operating assets / (liabilities)

Unallocated corporate assets:

Cash at bank and in hand
Corporate other receivables
Deferred tax assets
Corporate intangible assets

Derivatives

Unallocated corporate
liabilities:

Total borrowings (note 21)
Pension scheme net deficit
Current taxation ligbilities

Corporate other payables

Total assets / (liabilities)

27 Jduly 28 July

2019 2018

Assets Liabilities Total Assets  Liabilities Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
455.8 {230.5) 225.3 499.5 (299.1) 200.4
230.7 (84.2) 146.5 295.7 (113.1) 182.6
190.1 (60.1) 130.0 212.0 (83.4) 128.6
876.6 (374.8) 501.8 1,007.2 (495.8) 511.86
99.8 - 99.8 251.2 - 251.2
238 - 23.8 23.8 - 23.8
54.0 - 54,0 47.3 - 47.3
2.2 - 2.2 2.0 - 2.0
11.3 - 11.3 11.2 - 11.2

- (750.6) (750.6) - (888.4) {888.4}

- (282.4) (282.4) - (269.0) (269.0)

- {4.1) (4.1) - (1.6 (1.6)

- (46.8) {46.8) - (46.0) {46.0)
1,067.7 (1,458.7) (391.0) 1,342.7  (1,700.6) (357.9)
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3. Turnover and segmental information (continued)

Turnover by

destination
52 52
weeks weeks
ended ended
27 July 28 July
2019 2018
£m £m

United Kingdom 2,206.8
Rest of Europe 517.5
Rest of the World 16.3

2,770.3
556.0
12.8

Total 2,740.6

3,338.1

Turnover by otigin

52 52
weeks weeks
ended ended

27 July 28 July
2019 2018
£m £m
2,132.0 2,631.6
608.6 707.5
2,74D0.6  3,339.1

(Loss) / profit

before tax
52 52
weeks weeks
ended ended
27 July 28 July
2019 2018
£m £m
{34.9) (4.8)
174 (1.1)"
(17.5) (5.9)

Net (liabilities) /
assets

27 July 28 July

2019
£m

(488.4)
97.4

(391.0)

2018
£m

(416.4)
58.5

(357.9)

All unallecated costs and assets noted in the segmental reconciliations have been allocated to the United
Kingdom in the above table, consistent with where the Group's head office is based.

* In the prior periad,the loss of £1.1m in the Rest of Europe is impacted by the sale of Green Isle Foods
Limited. This figure includes the exceptional write off of assets upon the sale of this legal entity.
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4, Net finance charge

Interest income and expense

Interest payable on loans and overdrafts

Interest on finance leases

Foreign exchange on financial instruments

Exchange (loss)/ gain

Fair value gains

On derivative financial liabilities designated in an effective
hedging relationship

Other finance costs

Net charge on defined benefit pension liability

Net finance charge

Foreign exchange on financial instruments arose on the retranslation of the element of the Group's euro

bond funding that was unhedged during the period.

52 weeks 52 weeks
ended ended

27 July 2019 28 July 2018
N £m £m
(57.9) (54.3)
(0.8) (1.2)
(58.7) (55.5)
{0.3) 0.1

2.4 3.2

(6.6) (8.1)
{63.2) (60.3)
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5. Exceptional costs / (income)

Net profit on disposal of operations

Non-recurring costs as a result of business disposal
Impairment of fixed asseis

Impairment of goodwill

Write off of balance sheet items

Redundancy, disruption and closure costs

Other claims and settlements

GMP equalisation on pension scheme

Total exceptional items

Current period

52 weeks 52 weeks
ended ended
27 July 28 July
2019 2018
£m £m
(63.9) (117.4)
- 3.6
- 3.3
- 31.6
- 9.1
10.1 34.2
2.3 4.8
11.6 -
(39.9) {30.8)

During the period, the Group disposed of Green Isle Brands Limited, encompassing the Green Isle Brands
and Donegal Catch businesses on 23 February 2019 resulting in a loss on disposal of £2.5m. The Group
also disposed of its Manton Wood sandwich business, recognising a profit on disposal of £66.4m resulting

in a net profit on disposal of operations of £63.9m.

The Group also recognised £10.1m of redundancy, disruption and closure casts, predominantly in the Protein
and branded divisions including exceptional costs arsing on the closure of the Witham and Cambustang

sites.

£2.3m of costs were incurred during the year in relation to claims and settlements.
The Group also recognised £11.6m in relation to past pension service costs as a result of the guaranteed

minimum pension equalisation exercise.
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5. Exceptional costs / {income) {continued)
Prior period

During the prior period, the Group recognised a profit on disposal of its Frozen Pizza business within Green
Isle Foods Limited of £129.5m upon its sale to Nomad Foods.

The Group also tecognised a loss on the disposal of 2 Sisters Red Meat Limited of £12.1m upon its sale to
Kepak Group Limited.

In addition, the group incurred a further £3.6m of costs arising as a result of the disposal of businesses,
predominantly relating to IT systems.

The Group also reassessed the expected cashflow performance of its cash generating units, and as a result
recagnised an impairment of plant and machinery at the Five Star Fish and Gunstones sites of £3.3m, and
an impairment of goodwill of £31.6m.

As part of the transformation of the organisation a balance sheet review was undertaken and the Group
identified £9.1m of balances which could no longer be supported in relatlon to prior periods as a result of
historical control deficiencies.

£34.2 was recognised in relation to redundancy, disruption and closure costs in the Protein division, including
£16.3m in relation to the closure of the Cambuslang site.

£4.8m of costs were incurred in relation to claims and settlements,

The tax effect of the exceptional items on the amounts charged to the profit and loss account for taxation
was:

52 weeks 52 weeks

ended ended

27 July 28 July

2019 2018

£m £m

Tax credit on exceptional items 4.8 6.6
Decrease in tax charge to profit and loss account 4.8 6.6

The credit of £4.8m (2018: £6.6m) relates to a corporation tax credit of £2.6m (2018: £8.3m) and a £2.2m
deferred tax credit {2018: charge £1.7m).
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6.

Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging / {crediting):

Loss before taxation

Auditor's remuneration for audit services
Operating lease rentals:

- hire of plant and machinery

- other
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets:

- owned

- leased
Impairment of tangible fixed assets

- owned
Impairment of goodwill
Amortisation of goodwill
Research and development costs
Loss / (Profit) on disposal of tangible fixed assets
Government grants

- capital

- revenue
Cost of inventory recognised as an expense
Pension scheme administration costs
Defined contribution pension costs

Note

13

13
12
12

52 weeks
ended
27 July
2018

£m

0.6

8.0
5.7

54.7
57

0.3
22.4
3.3
0.6
(0.2)
(0.2)
1,499.5

13.7

52 weeks
ended
28 July
2018

£m

0.6

10.4
6.2

57.6
6.4

3.3
31.6
28.6
5.5

(0.2)

(0.5)
{1.3)
1,928.4

125
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6. Loss before taxation (continued)

The analysis of auditor's remuneration is as follows:

Fees payable to the Company's auditors for the audit of
the Company's annual financial statements

Audit of the Company’s subsidiaries pursuant to
legislation

Total audit fees

Tax compliance services

Tax advisory services

Total tax services

Cerporate finance services

Total non-audit fees

52 weeks 52 weeks
ended ended
27 Jduly 28 July
2019 2018
£000 £000
31 31

607 538
638 569

- 280

- 280

285 287
285 567
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the 52 weeks ended 27 July 2019

7. Staff numbers and costs

Group

The average monthly number of employees (including directors), was:

Production
Distribution
Administration

Staff costs (including directors), consists of;

Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Defined contribution pension costs {note 30)

52 weeks 52 weeks
ended ended

27 July 28 July
2019 2018
{Number) {Number)
17,970 18,757
728 724

2,048 2,468
20,746 21,949
£m £m

439.6 465.7
38.9 42,9

13.7 12.5
4922 5211

In addition to the above, redundancy costs of £2.4m (2018: £8.9m) are included in exceptional items.

Company

The Company has twelve employees (2018: fourteen), all of whom falt within Administration functions.

The directors are remunerated through other Group companies. During the period £0.8m (2018: £0.8m) was

recharged to the Company in relation to directors.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the 52 weeks ended 27 July 2019

8. Directors’ remuneration

B2 weeks 52 weeks

ended ended

27 July 28 July

Emoluments of Company’s directors: 2019 2018
£m £m

Salaries, bonuses and benefiis 5.5 4.2
Compensation for loss of office - -
Company contributions to money purchase pension scheme - -
5.5 4.2

Emoluments of highest paid director:

Salaries, bonuses and benefits 3.2 1.2
Compensation for loss of office - -
Company contributions to money purchase pension scheme - -
3.2 1.2

Bonuses are accruing to the directors based on pre-determined performance targets.
One director {2018: one director) is a member of the money purchase pension scheme.

Directors’ advances, credits and guarantees

There are no further transactions with directors during the period to disclose.
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9, Taxation on loss
52 weeks 52 weeks

ended ended
27 July 28 July
2019 2018
fm £m
United Kingdom corporation tax
Current tax on income for the period - -
Adjustment in respect of prior periods (1.1) 0.1
Total (charge) / credit {(1.1) 0.1
Overseas taxation
Current tax on income for the period {4.3) {4.1)
Adjustment in respect of prior periods - 0.3
Total charge (4.3) (3.8)
Deferred taxation
Net origination of timing differences 9.8 {10.8)
Adjustment in respect of prior periods (1.5) (6.1)
Change in corporation tax rate (0.1) 0.7
Deferred tax on pension scheme (0.4) : 25.2
Total credit 7.8 8.9
Current taxation {5.4) {3.7)
Deferred taxation 7.8 8.9
Tax credit on loss 2.4 5.2
Tax relating to components of other comprehensive income (0.9) {61.0)
1.5 (55.8)

The standard rate of tax applied to reported profit onis 19% {2018: 18%).

The Finance Act 2019 received Royal Assent on 12 February 2019, this act outlined a reduction to the main
rate of corporation tax to 17% from 1 April 2020. Accordingly, these rates have been taken into account when
calculating deferred tax assets, giving consideration to when the assets will reverse.

There is no expiry date on timing differences, unused tax losses or tax credits.
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BOPARAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the 52 weeks ended 27 July 2019

9.

Taxation on loss {continued)

The corporation tax charge is different to the standard UK corporation tax rate of 19.0% {2018: 19.0%).
The differences are analysed below:

10.

Current tax reconcilfation
Loss before taxation

Taxation on loss at the standard UK corporation tax rate of
19.0% {(2018: 19.0%;)

Effects of:
- Amortisation not deductible for tax purposes
- Depreciation not deductible for tax purposes
- Expenses/income not deductible/taxable for tax purposes
- Gains on disposal subjectto substantial shareholding
exemption
Differences between UK and overseas tax rates
Tax rate differences
Adjustment in respect of prior periods
Derecognition of deferred tax assets on pensions and
advanced capital allowances
Derecognition of deferred tax asset on sale of businesses

Tax credit for the pericd

Loss attributable to the Company

52 weeks 52 weeks
ended ended
27 July 28 July
2019 2018
£m £m
(17.5) (5.9)
3.3 1.1
{4.2) (5.3)
(1.6) (2.1)
{2.9) {18.3)
151 26.1
(0.1) 1.1
(1.3) 0.2
(2.8) {5.7)
(3.1) 11.7

- (3.6)

2.4 5.2

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2008, no separate profit and loss account or statement
of comprehensive income is presented in respect of the parent Company. The profit / (loss) attributable to

the Company is disclosed in the footnote to the Company's balance sheet.

11.

No dividends have been declared or paid for the period ending 27 July 2019.

Dividends on equity shares

There were also no dividends declared in respect of the period ending 28 July 2018.
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For the 52 weeks ended 27 July 2019

12. Intangible fixed assels

Group

Goodwill Software Total
Cost £m £m £m
At 28 July 2018 527.7 3.1 530.8
Additions - 0.7 0.7
Disposal of subsidiaries (45.7) - (45.7)
Foreign currency translation 0.2 - 0.2
At 27 July 2019 482,2 3.8 486.0
Amortisation
Al 28 July 2018 . 243.7 0.1 243.8
Charge for the period 21.6 0.8 22.4
Disposal of subsidiaries {0.1) - {0.1)
Foreign currengy translation 0.1 - 0.1
At 27 July 2018 265.3 0.9 266.2
Nef book value
At 27 July 2019 216.9 2.9 219.8
At 28 July 2018 284.0 3.0 287.0

There were £nil intangible fixed assets held by the Company (2018: £nil}.

Amortisation charged during the period is recognised within administrative expenses in profit and loss,



BOPARAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements {continued)
For the 52 weeks ended 27 July 2019

13. Tangible fixed assets

Long / short Plant, fixtures

Freehold leaseheld and motor

Group properties properties vehicles Total

£m £m £m £m
Cost
At 28 July 2018 116.2 20.1 523.2 659.5
Additions 2.0 - 66.3 68.3
Impairment - - (0.3} {0.3}
Disposals as a result of (11.0} - (22.2) (33.2)

sale of subsidiaries
Disposals (1.4) (0.4) {33.4) {35.2)
Translation difference 0.4 - (2.9) (2.5)
At 27 July 2019 106.2 19.7 530.7 656.6
Depreciation
At 28 July 2018 24,3 4.2 225.5 254.0
Charge for the period 5.5 0.6 54.3 60.4
Disposals as a result of {5.5) - (12.6) (18.1)
sale of subsidiaries

Disposals (1.4) (0.2) (25.8) (27.4)
Translation difference 0.2 - (2.1} (1.9)
At 27 July 2019 2341 4.6 239.3 267.0
Net book value
At 27 July 2019 83.1 151 291.4 389.6
At 28 July 2018 91.9 15.9 297.7 405.5

The net book value of tangible fixed assets includes £24.5m (2018: £33.5m) in respect of assets held under
finance leases. Depreciation charged in the period on those assets amounted ta £5.7m {2018: £6.4m).

There were £nil fixed assets held by the Company (2018: £nil).
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the 52 weeks ended 27 July 2019

14. Investments

The parent Gompany and the Group have investments in the following subsidiary undertakings, associates,

joint ventures and other investments.

Gompanies marked * are directly owned by Boparan Holdings Limited.

Company name

2 Sisters Food Group Limited*

2 Sisters Poultry Limited™'+

Amber Foods Limited*?

BH Acquisitions Limited*~

Boparan Finance plc*

2 Sisters Fish Limited (formaily known as Fivg Star Fish

Limited)* +

Cavaghan & Gray Limited*
Convenience Foods Limited+

F W Farnsworth Limited*

Northern Foods Grocery Group Limited*
Solway Foods Limited*

Hook 2 Sisters Limited*"

2 Sisters Europé B.V.*5

2 Sisters Hamrol Sp. Z.0.0.%

2 Sisters Storieboom B.V.5
Noblesse Proteins Investments B.V .8
Storteboomn Agri B.V.5

Storteboom Zeewolde B.V 10
Storteboom Fresh B.V.5

Storteboom Kornhern B.V.7
Storteboom Nijkerk B.V.8
Storteboom Barneveld B.V. 7
Storteboom Proeviokaal A7 B.V. %

Cavaghan & Gray Group Limited*

Beverley House Food Group Limited (formally known as
Green lsle Food Group Limited)

Northern Foods Limited

Solway Foods Holdings Limited*
R & K Wise Limited+

2 Sister Food Services Limited*+
Beverley House {3000) Limited*
BH9000 {Jersey) Limited
Beverley House Investments Limited*
Boparan Foods Limited™*
Challenger Foads Limited*
Dreamphoto Limited*
Dreamplayer Limited+

Principal activity
Chicken processing
Chicken processing
Chicken processing
Holding company
Group financing

Food processing

Food processing
Food processing
Food processing
Food processing
Food processing
Chicken growing
Holding company
Chicken processing
Chicken processing
Chicken processing
Chicken processing
Chicken processing
Chicken processing
Chicken proceséing
Chicken processing
Chicken processing
Chicken processing
Holding company

Holding company

Holding company
Holding company
Pension holder
Non-trader
Non-trader
Non-trader
Non-trader
Non-trader
Non-trader
Non-trader
Non-trader

Country of incorporation

England
Scotland
Jersey

England
England

England

England
England
England
England
England
England
Netherlands
Poland
Netherlands
Netherlands
Netherlands
Netherlands
Netherlands
Netherlands
Netherlands
Netherlands
Netherlands
England

Republic of Ireland

England
England
England
England
England
Jersgy

England
England
England
England
England
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14. Investments (continued)

Company name Principal activity Country of incorporation
Dressadmire Limited* Non-trader England

Ethnic Cuisine Limited+ Non-trader England
Farnswaorth Investiments Limited* Non-trader England

Green Isle Foods (Boyle) Limited Non-trader Republic of Ireland
Green lsle Foods Portumna Limited Non-trader Republic of Ireland
Green [sle Group Services Limited Non-trader Republic of Ireland
Green Isle Holdings ApS" Non-trader Denmark

Hulcay Limited*'2 Non-trader Cayman Islands
Island Wharf (100) Limited* Non-trader England

Island Wharf (300) Limited+ Non-trader England

John Rannoch Limited* Non-trader England

Joseph Mitchell (Letham) Limited' Non-trader England

Lioyd Maunder Limited* Nan-trader England

Melwood Investments Limited* Non-trader England

Norcay Limited*'? Non-trader Cayman lIslands
Northern Foods American Holdings Limited* Non-trader England

Northern Foods Finance Limited* Non-trader England

Poldy’s Fresh Foods Limited Non-trader Republic of Ireland
Scot-Lad Limited™ Non-trader Scotland

2 Sister Food Processors Limited Dormant England

2 Sisters Food Group inc.'® Dormant United States of America
2 Sisters Premier Division Limited* Dormant England

2 Sisters Site Certification Limited Dormant England

2 Sisters (Wolverhampton) Limited* Dormant England

Amber Proteins Limited Dormant Jersey

Billerest Products Limited? Dormant Republic of Ireland
Buxted Chicken Limited . Dormant England

Buxted Fresh Quality Foods Limited . Dormant England

Century Way (Number One) Limited Dormant England

Ei?nr}{ggy Way (Wiltshire) Pension Scheme Trustees Dormant England

Century Way Dale Limited Dormant England

Devon Crest Foods Limited Dormant England
Entrancelord Limited Dormant England

Fleur De Lys Pies Limited Dormant England

Fox’s Biscuits Limited Dormant England

George Payne & Go Limited Dormant England
Hortonwood Bakeries Limited Dormant England

island Wharf {600} Limited Dormant England

Green Isle Pastry Limited'® Food Processing Republic of Ireland
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14. Investments (continued)

Company name Principal activity Country of incorporation
Mitchell (Game) Limited' Dormant Scotland
Montgomery Bell Limited'3 Dermant Northern Ireland
Penwood Agriculture Limited* Dormant England
Penwood Foods Limited* Dormant England
Premier Farming Limited Dormant England
Premier Fresh Foods Limited Dormant England

Prime Game Limited" Dormant Scotland
Silverbeach Limited™ Dormant Jersey

Swiss Milk Products Limited Dormant England

The Salad Company Limited Dormant England
Todayultra Limited Dormant England

Woalter Holland & Sons Limited Dormant Engiand

Other than those investments listed below, the Company and the Group own 100% of the ordinary share
capital and voting rights of all the companies above.

The Company's subsidiary 2 Sisters Europe B.V. owns 86% of the ordinary share capital of 2 Sisters Hamrol
Sp. Z.o.0.

The Company and the Group own 93.9% of the ordinary share capital of 2 Sisters Premier Division Limited.

The registered address of all undertakings is Trinity Park House, Trinity Business Park, Fox Way, Wakefield,
West Yorkshire, WF2 8EE unless otherwise stated.

Registered office:
' George Street, Coupar Angus, Blairgowrie, Perthshire, PH13 LU

2 No2, The Forum, Grenville Street, St Helier, Jersey, JE1 4HH

3 29 Earlsfort Terrace, Dublin 2, D02 AY28, Ireland

+ Cote, Bampton, Oxfordshire, OX18 2EG

S Past Box 42, Voorthuizerstraat 148, NL-3881, Putten, The Netherlands

& Kotowo 1A, 62-066 Granowo, Poland

7 Post Box 7, Provincialeweg 70, NL-8864 PG, Kornhorn, The Netherlands
8 Ambachtsweq 7, NL-9418, TW Wijster, The Netherlands

9 Post Box 1029, Galvanistraat 2, NL-3861, Nijkerk, The Netherlands

0 Akkerweg 3, NL-3899, BL Zeewolde, The Netherlands

! Harbour House, Sundkrogsgade 21, 2100 Copenhagen, Denmark

2 PO Box 308, Ugland House, South Church Street, Grand Cayman, Cayman Isiands
13 19 Bedford Street, Belfast, Northern {reland, BT2 7EJ

4 12 Castle Street, St Helier, Jersey, JE2 3RT

521801 Cacius Ave, Falcon Business Park, Meridian, Riverside, CA 82518
16 29 Earlsfort Terrace, Dublin, D02 AY?28, Ireland

17 Hanzeweg 22, 3771 NG Barneveld

18 Schilligepad 8, 9356TK Tolbert
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14. Investments {(continued)

~The Company's subsidiary 2 Sisters Food Group Limited owns 50% of the ordinary share capital of Hook 2
Sisters Limited.

For the period ending 27 July 2019 the subsidiaries of the Company marked + were entitled to exemgption
from audit under s479A of the Companies Act 2006 relating to subsidiary companies.

Investment in associate

The Company's subsidiary 2 Sisters Europe BY holds a 26% interest in Noblesse Proteins Investments B.V.,
a company incorporated in The Netherlands,

The amount shown in the consolidated balance sheet represents the amount invested and the Group’s share
of Noblesse Proteins Investments B.V. post tax profits.

Investment in joint venture

The Company’s subsidiary 2 Sisters Food Group Limited owns 50% of the ordinary share capital of Hook 2
Sisters Limited.

The amount shown in the consolidated balance sheet represents the amount invested and the Group’s share
of Hook 2 Sisters Limited’s post tax profits.

Associated Joint

undertaking venture Total
Group £m £m £m
At 28 July 2018 53 1.9 7.2
Share of retained profit for the period 0.8 1.0 1.8
Dividend paid (0.5} - {0.5)
At 27 July 2019 5.6 29 8.5

The Group's share of retained profit for the period is in relation to continuing operations.

Company ' £m
Cost at 28 July 2018 144.9
At 27 July 2019 144.9

Provisions for impairment are made where it is deemed the carrying value of the investment will not be
recovered. The directors consider the value of investments to be supported by their underlying assets and
future cash flows. :
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15. Sale of Subsidiaries

On 26 January 2019, the Group sold its 100% interest in the ordinary share capilal of Manton Wood Limited,

a new company in the year.

The Group also disposed of its 100% interest in the ordinary share capital of Green Isle Brands Limited on

23 February 2019. The profit up to the date of disposal was £0.3m {2018: £1.9m).

Manton Green Isle

Wood Brands

Limited Limited
£m £m
Fixed assets 14.0 1.1
Current assets 41 A4
Net assets 18.1 55
Goodwill 29.4 16.2
Profit / {loss) on digposal of subsidiary (noie 5) 66.4 (2.5)
Sale Proceeds 113.9 19.2

Satisfied by:

Cash and cash equivalents 113.9 19.2

In the prior period, the Group sold its 100% interest in the ordinary share capital of 2 Sisters Red Meat

Limited. The loss after tax up to the date of disposal was £3.0m.

in the prior period, the Group also sold its 100% imterest in the ordinary share capital in Green Isle Foods

Limited. The profit up to the date of disposal was £9.3m.
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16. Inventory

Raw materials and consumables
Work in progress
Finished goods and goods for resale

Group
27 July 28 July

2019 2018
£m £m
31.2 35.2
7.3 10.3
62.9 63.0
101.4 108.5

In the opinion of the directors the carrying value of inventory is not materially different to the replacement

cost.

There was £nil inventory held by the Company at the period end (2018: £nil).

17. Debtors

Amounis falling due within one year:

Trade debtors
Amounts owed by group undertakings

Amounts owed by related parties
Amounts owed by joint ventures
Other debtors

Corporation tax receivable
Prepayments and accrued income

Derivatives

Amounts falling due after more than one
year:

Derivatives

Total debtors

Group Company
27 July 28 July 27 July 28 July
2019 2018 2019 2018
fm £m £m £m
115.0 147.1 0.4 -
- - 1,236.4 1,381.2
3.2 4.2 - -
3.3 3.4 - -
40.9 47.3 - -
- - - 3.8
20.9 22.8 - -
0.1 0.1 - -
183.4 224.9 1,236.8 1,385.0
11.2 11.1 11.2 11.1
11.2 11.1 11.2 11.1
194.6 236.0 1,248.0 1,396.1
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18. Deferred tax asset

52 weeks 52 weeks

ended ended

27 July 28 July

2019 2018

fm £m

Deferred tax asset at the start of the period 47.3 98.1
Current period credit to profit and loss account 9.3 15.1
Gurrent and prior period charge to other comprehensive income {0.9) (61.0)
Other movements (0.1) 1.4
Foreign currency translation (0.1) -
Adjustments in respect of prior periods (1.5) (68.3)
Deferred tax asset at the end of the period 54.0 47.3

Deferred tax assets / liabilities are recognised at the rate applicable at the time the underlying asset /

liability is expected to reverse, and are analysed as follows:

27 July 28 July

2019 2018

£m £m

Accelerated capital allowances 237 255

Short term timing differences 29 3.0

Def_errgd tax arising in refation to retirement benefit 19.2 18.8
obligations

Corporate interest expense. 8.2 -

54.0 47.3

No deferred tax asset has been recognised on balances totalling £520.5m at 27 July 2019 {(2018:
£475.9m) as itis uncertain whether these will be utilised against future taxable profits, gains or interest
capacity. Of this, £159.3m (2018: £160.3m) relates to capital losses, £163.5m (2018: £163.5m) relates
to the pension liability, £141.0m (2018: £97.6m) relates to accelerated capital allowances and £56.5m
(2018: £54.5m) relates to corporate interest expense carried forward as at 27 July 2019. The Group's
unrecegnised deferred tax asset on these balances at 17% would be £88.5m (2018: £80.9m).
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19. Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

Obligations under finance leases (note 21)
Bond interest accrual {note 21)
Bond notes (note 21)

Short term borrowings {note 21)
Trade creditors

Amount owed to group undertakings
Amount owed to related parties
Amount owed to joint venture
Corporation tax

Other taxation and social security
Other creditors

Accruals and deferred income
Government grants

20, Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year

Obligations under finance leases (note 21)
Bond notes

Long term borrowings

Amount owed to group undertakings
Accruals and deferred income
Government grants

Group Company
27 July 28 July 27 July 28 July
2019 2018 2019 2018
£m £m £m £m
7.0 8.3 - -
129 18.7 - -
- 250.0 - -
74.5 1.1 745 -
223.1 309.9 0.4 -
- - 611.9 841.6
1.4 29 - -
50.1 39.7 - -
4.1 1.6 5.5 -
7.1 7.4 - -
22,6 13.7 - -
85.0 123.2 6.5 0.2
0.7 0.7 0.2 0.2
488.5 777.2 693.0 842.0

Group Company
27 July 28 July 27 July 28 July
2019 2018 2019 2018
£fm £m £m £m
121 18.7 - -
596.9 592.2 - -
472 - - -
- - 599.7 596.8
6.8 0.9 - -
0.9 1.3 - 02
663.9 613.1 599.7 587.0

The amount awed to group undertakings comprises £330m of intercompany loans due 2021 at an
interest rate of 5.50% and €300m of intercompany locans due 2021 at an interest rate of 4.375%.

The terms of the bond notes are disclosed within note 21,
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21, Borrowings

Group
27 July 28 July
2019 2G18
£m £m
Bond notes 581.1 824.9
Fareign exchange on hedged portion of debt {note 28) 18.5 219
Bond interest accrual (note 28) 12.9 18.7
Unamortised prepaid bond fees {note 28} (2.7) {4.6)
Bond notes at amortised cost (note 23) 609.8 860.9
Other borrowings {note 20) 131.0 11
Unamortised prepaid borrowing fees (9.3) )
121.7 1.1
Obligations under finance leases 19.1 27.0
Total borrowings 750.6 889.0
Due within one year 94.4 278.1
Due after more than one year 656.2 610.9
Total borrowings 750.6 889.0
Bond notes and other borrowings:
Within one year or less or on demand (note 19) 87.4 269.8
More than one year but not more than two years (note 20) 644.1 -
More than two years but not more than five years (note 20) - 592.2
More than five years - -
731.5 862.0
Obligations under finance leases:
Within one year or less or on demand (note 19) 7.0 8.3
More than one year but not more than two years (note 20) 7.4 8.2
More than two years but not more than five years {note 20) 4.7 10.5
More than five years (note 20) - -
19.1 27.0
Total borrowings {note 23) 750.6 889.0

The bond comprises £330m of Senior Loan Notes due 2021 at an interest rate of 5.50% and €300m of Senior
Loan Notes due 2021 at an interest rate of 4.375%. The Group also has an £80m Revolving Credit Facility
maturing in March 2021.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the 52 weeks ended 27 July 2019

21. Bdrrowings {continued)
The RCF balance drawn at 27 July 2019 was £78.0m {2018: £nil). Interest on RCF drawings is
calculated with reference to LIBOR and EURLIBOR plus applicable margin. In addition, a
commitrnent fee is charged for the undrawn amount. The principal subsidiaries are guarantors to the
facilities.
Finance leases are secured over the assets to which they relate.
22. Provisions for liabilities
Onerous
lease  Restructuring Dilapidations Other Total
£m £m £fm £m £m
At 28 July 2018 2.7 29.6 0.7 8.3 41.3

Current period charge / (credit) to
profit and loss account:

- exceptional (note 5) {0.5) 2.5 - 5.3 7.3
- hon-exceptional - - - - -

Utilised in the period:

- exceptional (0.1) {16.3) - {4.2) {20.6)
- hon-exceptional - - -

Released in the period:

- exceptional - (4.0} - - (4.0
Foreign exchange movement - (G.1) - - (0.1)

At 27 July 2019 2.1 11.7 0.7 8.4 23.9

Provisions of £23.9m (2018: £41.3m) comprise:

£2.1m (2018: £2.7m) in respect of onerous leases costs at Haughley Park, Letham, Eye,
Skelmersdale and Biocity. These provisions are expected to be utilised over a period of greater
than 12 months.

£11.7m (2018: £29.6m) in refation to the restructuring of the Group's operations during the period,
predominantly being the closure of the Grimsby 5 Star Fish site and the Witham site, as well as the
closure of Cambusiang in the prior year. These provisions are materially expected to be utilised
over a period of less than 12 months.

£0.7m (2018; £0.7m) in relation to dilapidations. These provisions are materially expected to be
utilised over a period of less than 12 months.

£9.4m (2018: £8.3m) of other provisions which largely refate fo potential employer liability and
industrial illness claims. These provisions are materially expected to be settled within 12 months.

At the period end the Company had £nil provisions (2018: £nil}.
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23. Financial instruments

The carrying values of the Group's financial instruments are summarised by category below:

27 July 28 July
Note 2019 2018
£fm £m
Financial assets
Equity instruments measured at cost less impairment:
Fixed asset unlisted investments 14 8.5 7.2
Measured at fair value and designated in an effective hedging
relationship:
Derivative financial assets 24 11.2 11.1
Measured at fair value through profit and loss:
Derivative financial assets 24 0.1 0.1
Debt instruments measured at amortised cost:
Trade debtors 17 115.0 1471
Cash and cash equivalents 99.8 251.2
234.6 418.7
Financial {iabilities
Measured af amortised cost:
Trade creditors 19 223.1 300.9
Bond notes 21 609.8 860.9
Other borrowings 21 121.7 1.1
Obligations under finance leases 21 19.1 27.0
973.7 1,198.9
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23. Financial instruments {continued)

The Group's incoma, expenses, gains and losses recognised in profit and loss in respect of financial
instruments are summarised below:

52 weeks 52 weeks
ended ended
27 July 28 July
2019 2018
Note £m £m
Interest expenses
Total interest expense for financial liabilities at amortised cost 4 58.7 55.5
58.7 55.5
Fair value gain / {loss)
On derivative financial liabilities designated in an effective
hedging relationship one 4 (2.4) (3:2)
On derivativg financial liabilities measured at fair value 4 0.3 0.4)
through profit and loss
(2.1) {3.3)
Other (income) / expenses in respect of financial instruments
Profit recognised in the period relating to unlisted equity investments 14 (1.3) {1.5)
Total foreign excha.nge toss / (gain) on financial liabilities 28 6.2 @.2)
measured at amortised cost (bond notes)
4.9 (1.7
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24,  Derivative financial instruments
The Group has the following derivatives which are included at fair value in the balance sheet:

Due within one year Due after one year
27 duly 28 July 27 July 28 July
2019 2018 2018 2018
£m £m fm £m
Derivatives that are designated and effective
as hedging instruments carried at fair value
Assets
Cross currency swaps {note 17) - - 11.2 111
Derivatives accounted for at fair value
through profit and loss
Assets
Forward foreign currency contracts (note 17) 0.1 0.1 - -

The Company has the following derivatives which are included at fair value in the balance sheet:

Due within one year Due after one year
27 July 28 July 27 July 28 July
2019 2018 2018 2018
£m £m £fm £m
Derivatives that are designated and effective
as hedging instruments carried at fair value
Assets
Cross currency swaps (note 17) - - 11.2 11.1

The Group's cross currency swaps are valued at the present value of future cash flows estimated and
discounted based on quoted forward exchange rates and applicable yield curves derived from quoted interest
rates matching maturities of the contracts.

The fair value of the forward currency contracts is calculated by reference to current forward exchange
contracts with similar maturity profiles.

Forward foreign currency contracts are valued using quoted forward exchange rates and yield curves detived
from quoted interest rates matching maturities of the contracts.
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24, Derivative financial instruments {continued)

Cash flow hedges

Cross currency swaps

The following table details the notional principal amounts and remaining terms of the Group's cross
currency swap contracts outstanding as at the reporting date:

Notional value GBP

Fixed interest rate €255m at £1:€1.209 Fair Value
Receive fixed euro, Euro GBP 2019 2018 2019 2018
pay fixed GBP contracts  receive pay £m £m £m £m
2 1o 5 years 4.38% 7.41% 210.9 204.8 (11.2) {11.1)
210.9 204.8 (11.2) (11.1)

The Group's borrowings include €300m of Senior Loan Notes due 2021 {note 21). The Group has entered
into cross currency swaps (the Hedging Instrument) to hedge against the exchange rate risk arising from the
future interest and principal repayments on €255m of the €300m Senior Loan Notes (the Hedged ltem).

These cross currency swaps are designated as cash flow hedges. Under the terms of the cross currency
swaps the Group’s repayment of the principal and inierest payments are fixed in GBP at a GBP:Euro
exchange rate of 1:1.209. The Group will settle the difference between the euro denominated interest
payable on the Senior _oan Note and the GBP denominated fixed interest due on the SWAP on a bi-annual
basis, and on the principal repayment in July 2021. The hedged cash flows are expected to occur over the
period to maturity of the cross currency swap.

The net gain recognised in other comprehensive income relating to cash flow hedges amounted to £1.8m
{2018: gain of £6.4m). This comprised of gains of £4.4m (2018: gains of £4.9m) on the Hedging Instrument
disclosed above, and foreign exchange loss on the Hedged ltem of £2.6m (2018: gain of £1.5m),

Hedge ineffectiveness resulling in a loss of £2.4m (2018: loss of £3.2m) was reclassified and racognised in
profit and loss for the period.

Cross currency swaps are valued at the present value of future cash flows estimated and discounted based
on the applicable yield curves derived from quoted interest rates.
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24. Derivative financial instruments (continued)
Accounted for at fair vatue through profit or loss
The folloawing table details the forward foreign currency contracts outstanding at each period end.

Average contractual Notional value Fair value
exchange rate
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
£m £m £m £m
Buying EUR:
In less than 3 months 1.1120 1.1109 0.5 0.6 01 0.1
In 3 months to 1 year - - - - - -
0.5 0.6 0.4 0.1

The group has entered into contracts to purchase goods from suppiiers in Europe and USA. The Group
entered into forward foreign currency contracts to hedge the exchange rate risk arising from these anticipated
future transactions. These forward exchange contracts were accounted for at fair value through profit and
loss. £0.1m fair value gains (2018: £0.1m) were recognised through operating profit in the period.
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25. Share capital and share premium account

Allotted, called up and fully paid

27 July
2019
£m

28 July
2018
£m

The nominal value of the share capital issued at the end of the period was £7,730 {2018: £7,730).

The classes of ordinary share capital in issue at the start and the end of the period are shown below:

No of Nominal

shares
Ordinary (1) shares of £0.01 each 500,800
Ordinary (2) shares of £0.01 each 2
Ordinary (3) shares of £0.01 each 12,316
Ordinary (4) shares of £0.01 each 225,799
Ordinary {5) shares of £0.01 each 20,527
Ordinary {6) shares of £0.01 each 13,548

772,992

value

£0.01
£0.01
£0.01
£0.01
£0.01
£0.01

Price
paid

£0.01
£487.16
£487.17
£487.15
£487.16
£487.16

Issued Share

share premium
capital

£m £m

- 6.0

- 110.0

- 10.0

- 6.6

- 132.6

All tranches of ordinary shares issued have voting rights and the right to full participation in any

dividends and returns of capital.

The cash flow hedge reserve of £(4.1)m is in relation to the derivative financial instrument as noted

in note 24.
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26.

Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash flow from operating activities

Operating profit

Adjustments for:

Depreciation

Amortisation of goodwill

Defined benefit pension scheme administration costs
Curtailment gains on the defined benefit pension scheme

Exceptional items charged to operating profit
Grants and other non-cash movements

Operating cash flow before movement in working capital

Decrease in inventory

Decrease / (increase) in debtors
{Decrease) in creditors and provisions
Cash impact of exceptional items

Payments made in respect of defined benefit pension
schemes

Cash generated from operations

Note

13
12

30

30

27 July 28 July
2019 2018
£m £m
44.4 52.9
60.4 64.0
22.4 28.6
3.1 2.2

- (4.8)
(39.9) (30.8)
(2.3) (2.9)
88.1 109.2
25 24.3
26.7 (12.4)
(101.0) (21.4)
(26.5) (2.2)
(23.1) (27.1)
(33.3) 69.4
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27. Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net debt

(Decrease) / increase in cash

Disposal of subsidiary

Movement in net debt
Net debt brought forward

Net debt carried forward

28. Analysis of net debt

Cash balances

Debt due within one
year

Debt due after more than
one year

Finance leases

Total borrowings {note
21)

Prepayment of bond
fees & other financing
fees

Foreign exchange on
bond notes

Interest accrual

Adjusted borrowings

27 July 28 July
2019 2018
£m £m
(152.0) 185.3
Cash outflow from debl and lease financing 125.8 8.1
2.2 -
Change in net debt resulting from cash flows {24.0) 193.4
Effect of foreign exchange rates {5.6) -
(29.6) 193.4
{601.8) {795.2)
(631.4) {601.8)
28 July Cash Disposal of Loan Other Foreign 27 July
2018 flow  subsidiary incepting Movements  exchange 2019
£m £m £m into a £m £m £m
finance
lease
£m
251.2 {152.0) - - - 0.6 99.8
(269.8) 215.0 - 1.8 (34.3) (0.1 (87.4)
(592.2) (53.0) - - 3.9 (2.8) (644.1)
(27.0) 7.4 2.2 {1.8) - 0.1 (i8.1)
{889.0) 169.4 2.2 - {30.4) (2.8) (750.6)
{4.6) . - - (7.4) - {12.0)
21.9 - - - - (3.4) 18.5
18.7 {43.6) - - 37.8 - 12.9
(853.0) 125.8 2.2 - - {(6.2) {731.2)
(601.8) {26.2) 22 - ~ (5.6) (631.4)

Net debt
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28. Analysis of net debt {continued)

Net debt comprises bonds, other borrowings and finance leases net of cash. These are stated at period end
exchange rates, or hedged rates where there is an effective external hadge in place. The cther movement of
£3.9m on debt due after more than one year is amortisation of the prepayment of bond fees and other loan
fees. In the balance sheet, the bond balance is shown net of the prepaid bond fees. Management monitor
and view the net debt figure excluding prepaid fees and so it is added back into net debt in the table above.

During the period the Group entered into finance lease agreements with a capital value at the inception of the
lease of £2.3m (2018: £1.2m).

The Group has placed €15.0m in Escrow payable to the trustees of The Green Isle Food Group Retirement
and Death Benefit Plan prior to July 2020.

29 July Cash Reclassified Cther Foreign 28 July
2017 flow £m Movements exchange 2018
£m £m £m £m £m
Cash balances 66.1 185.3 - - (0.2} 251.2
5:3 due within one  (4q g) 419 (250.0) (42.5) (0.2) (269.8)
Debt due after more g4, 4) . 250.0 (1.9) 18 (592.2)
than one year
Finance leases (36.2) 9.2 - - - (27.0)
Total borrowings (897.3) 511 - (44.4) 1.6 (889.0)
{note 21)
Prepayment of bond '
feos (6.5) - - 1.9 - (4.6)
Foreign exchange on ) )
bond notos 23,5 . {1.6) 21.9
Interest accrual 19.0 {43.0) - 42.5 0.2 18.7
Adjusted borrowings {861.3) 8.1 - - 0.2 (853.0)
Net debt (795.2) 193.4 - - - {601.8)

The other movement of £1.9m on debt due after more than one year is amortisation of the prepayment of
bond fees.
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29,

Financial commitments

Capital commftments

Group

There were capital commitments of £0.9m at 27 July 2019 (2018: £0.3m) provided for at the period
end and capital commitments contracted for but not provided for of £2.2m (2018: £12.3m). These

commitments related to the purchase of plant & fixtures.

Company

There were no capital commitments provided for at the peried end (2018: £nil) and also no capital

commitments contracted for but not provided (2018: £nil).

Operating lease commitments

Group

Total future minimum lease payments under nen-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

27 Juty 28 July
2019 2018
£m £m

Land and buildings leases expiring:
Within ane year 5.8 8.7
Between one and five years 18.7 21.7
After five years 17.2 30.3
41.7 58.7

Other leases expiring:

Within one year 6.6 9.4
Between one and five years 71 14.4
After five years 0.1 -
"13.8 23.8

Company

Total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases at the period end

were £nil (2018: £nil),
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30. Pension arrangements

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION SCHEMES

The Group centributes to defined contribution schemes for all qualifying employees. The total cost charged
to income of £13.7m {2018: £12.5m) represents contributions payable to these schemes by the Company at
rates specified in the rules of the plans. At 27 July 2019 contributions of £1.1m (2018: £0.8m) due in respect
of the current reporting period had not been paid over to the schemes,

DEFINED BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a number of defined benefit schemes for qualifying empioyees, principally the Notrthern
Foods Pension Scheme, the R & K Wise Scheme, the Lloyd Maunder Limited Retirement Benefit and Life
Assurance Scheme (collectively the Schemes) and Northern Foods Pension Builder {the Pension Builder) in
the United Kingdom, the Green Isle Foed Group Retirement and Death Benefit Plan (the Plan) in the Republic
of Ireland and 2 Sisters Holland B.V pension arrangements in the Netherlands. Under the Schemes, the
Pension Builder and the Plan, employees are entitled to retirement benefits based on pay and service. The
Schemes, the Pension Builder and the Plan are funded schemes whilst the Group's Post-retirement medical
benefit scheme is unfunded. The Schemes and the Plan are final salary schemes. The Pension Builder is a
defined benefit scheme based on the career average principle. The assets of all the Schemes, the Pension
Builder and the Plan are held in trustee administered funds separate from the finances of the Group. All UK
and Irish schemas are closed to new entrants.

The Northern Foods Pension Scheme and Northern Foods Pension Builder Scheme were both closed to future
accrual with effect from 1 Novemnber 2011. A similar proposal became effective for the Green Isle pension
scheme from 31 October 2013.

The most recent actuarial valuations of the defined benefit schemes for the purpose of the financial statements
and the present value of defined benefit obligations were carried out at 27 July 2019 by independent qualified
actuaries. The present value of the defined benefit obligation was measured using the projected unit credit
method.

It has been deemed appropriate by management to aggregate all pension schemes together in the disclosure
notes below. Funding plans agreed to reduce the deficit (principally relating to the Northern Foods Pensicn
Scheme) are discussed later in this note. Principal assumptions are disclesed for the Northern Foods Pension
Scheme only on the basis that there are no significant differences between the assumptions used for the other
scheimes.

The principal assumptions used for the actuarial valuations of the Schemes were:
27 July 28 July

2019 2018
Rate of increase in salaries n/a n/a
Inflation assumption 3.32% 3.20%
Discount Rate 2.06% 2.55%
Rate of increase in pension paymenis 3.08% 2.99%
Mortality CMI_2018 CMI_2017

The Group has adopted the SAPS tables with scaling factors appropriate for each section of the membership
with the core CMI 2018 projections with a long-term rate of improvement of 1.25% (2018: 1.25%) per annum.
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30. Pension arrangements {continued)

The life expectancy in years for a member aged 65 is as follows:

Current pensioner - male

- female
Future pensioner - male

- female

POST-RETIREMENT MEDICAL BENEFIT SCHEME

27 July 28 July
2019 2018
{years) (years)
20.7 20.9
22.3 22.5
21.5 21.6
23.9 24.0

Until 31 March 1999, Northern Foods Limited operated a post-retirement medical benefit scheme. The
method of accounting, assumptions and the frequency of valuations are similar to those used for the defined
benefit pension schemes detailed above. The main actuarial assumptions are the underlying medical cost
inflation of 5.32% per annum (2018: 5.2%) and the discount rate of 2.06% per annum {2018: 2,55%).

Amounts recognised in the income statement in respect of the Group's defined benefit schemes and post-

employment medical benefit scheme are as follows:

Defined benefit pension

Post-retirement medical

Total retirement benefit

schemes ‘benefit scheme schemes
27 July 28 July 27 July 28 July 27 July 28 July
20198 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Net interest cost 6.6 8.1 - - 6.6 8.1
Curtailment loss / (gain) - (3.4) - (1.4) - (4.8)
Past service cost/
{credit) 11.6 - - - 11.6 -
Scheme Administration 1.9 11 i} ) 1.9 14
expenses
Charge to profit and loss 20.1 5.8 . (1.4) 20.1 4.4
account
Actuarial losses / {gains) 14.8 (37.5) 0.1 - 14.9 (37.5)
Recognised in other
comprehensive income 14.8 (37.5) 0.1 - 14.9 (37.5)
Total loss / {gain)
relating to defined
benefit schemes 349 (31.7) 0.1 (1.4) 35.0 (33.1)
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30. Pension arrangements (continued)

Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance sheet in respect of the Group’s defined benefit schemes
and post-retirement medical benefit scheme are as follows:

Defined benefit pension Post-retirement medical Total retirement benefit
schemes benefit scheme schemes
27 July 28 July 27 July 28 July 27 July 28 July
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Present value of
obligations {1,528.7) {1,394.3) (0.6) {0.6) {1,529.3) {1,394.9)
Fair value of scheme
assets 1,246.9 1,125.9 - - 1,246.9 1,125.9
Net liability recognised
in the balance sheet (281.8) (268.4) {0.6) (0.6) (282.4) (269.0)

The net pension scheme deficit in the balance shest is stated before deduction of the associated deferred
tax asset of £19.2m (2018: £18.8m), with the deferred tax asset shown separately within currant assets
(note 18).

Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligations were as follows:

Defined benefit pension Post-retirement medical Total retirement benefit
schemes benefit scheme schemes
27 July 28 July 27 July 28 July 27 July 28 July
2018 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
£m £m £m £fm £m £m
Scheme liabilities at the
start of the period 1,394.3 1,432.6 0.6 2.2 1,394.9 1,434.8
Interest cost 34.7 35.8 - - 34.7 35.8
Actuarial losses / {gains) 140.4 {5.8) 01 - - 1405 (5.8)
Benefits paid (52.7) (67.7) (0.1) (0.2) (52.8) (67.9)
Curtailment loss / (gain) - (0.4) - (1.4) - (1.8)
Past service cost/
{credit) 11.6 - - - 11.6
Exchange 0.4 (0.2 - - 0.4 (0.2)
Scheme liabilities at the
period end 1,528.7 1,394.3 0.6 0.6 1,529.3 1,394.9
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30. Pension arrangements (continued)

Movements in the fair value of scheme assets were as follows:

Scheme assets at start of the period
Interest income

Contributions by the employer
Benefits paid

Administration expenses

Actuarial gain on scheme assets
Exchange

Fair value of scheme assets at the pericd end

Defined benefit pension

schemes
27 July 28 July
2019 2018
£m £m

1,125.9 1,106.6

28.1 27.7
21.6 25.8
(52.7) (57.7)
(1.9) (1.1)
125.7 34.7
0.2 (©.1)

1,246.9  1,125.9

Contributions by the employer of £21.6m (2018: £25.8m) include £20.0m (2018: £24.3m) funding

contributions and £1.6m (2018: £1.5m) in respect of administrative expenses.

The Group have agreed to make payments in respect of the shortfall in the Northern Foads Fension Scheme,
until March 2034, The current funding rate under the agreement is £20m per year for the 5 year period ending
March 2022. This increased in April 2017 from the previcus rate of £15m per annum.

The analysis of the scheme assets at the balance sheet date was as follows:

Equities
Bonds

Cash

Hedge Funds
Other

Total fair value of assets

The other asset category includes derivalives and property assets.

27 July 28 July

2019 2018
£m £m
150.5 158.2
720.3 572.3
224.8 233.8
129.7 145.5
21.6 16.1

1,246.9 1,125.9
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30. Pension arrangements (continued)

The analysis of the total costs charged through administrative expenses during the period was as follows:

27 July 28 July

2019 2018

£m £m
Scheme administrative expenses 1.9 1.1
PPF levies 09 0.9
Other 0.3 0.2
Total defined benelit pensions costs charged through 3.1 5o

administrative expenses {(note 3 & 26)

£11.6m in relation to the gross miniumum pension equalisation was expensed in the year as per note 5.

The analysis of the total cash payments during the period was as follows:

27 July 28 July

2019 2018

£m £m

Contributions 21.6 25.9
PPF levies 0.9 0.9
Other 0.6 0.3
Total cash payments in respect of defined benefit pension schemes 23,1 57 1

during the period (note 26)

75



BOPARAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements {(continued)
For the 52 weeks ended 27 July 2019

31. Contingent liabilities

Boparan Holdings Limited and other Group subsidiary companies are guarantors in respect of the Senior
Loan Notes due 2021, wheraby they absolutely and unconditionally guarantee the principal and inierest on
the Senior Loan Notes. The same companies are cross guarantors in respect of the Boparan Holdings
Group's £80m Revolving Credit Facility which is a facility ¢f Boparan Holdings Limited.

The amount drawn down on this facility at the balance sheet date was £78.0m (2018: £nil). The total bond
value as at 27 July 2019 per the Group financial statements was £609.8m net of fees (2018: £860.9m) (note
21). The individually guaranteed amount is not readily available.

There are a number of contingent liabilities relating to litigation or potential claims from customers and
counterparties that arise in the normal course of business, which if realised are not expected to result in a
material liability to the Group. The Group regularly reviews all of these claims to determine any possible
financial loss; as at 27 July 2019 no provision was considered necessary. A provision will be recognised if
it is more likely than not a setlement will be required and the value of the payment can be reliably estimated.

For the purposes of the exemptions referred to in section 357 of the Irish Companies Act 2014, and not
otherwise, Boparan Holdings Limited as the holding undertaking of the undertakings listed below, hereby
irrevocably guarantees in respect of the financial period ended on the 27 July 2019, all of the liabilities of the
undertakings listed below; provided that this guarantee shall not extend to any liability or commitment of the
undertakings listed below which shall not have arisen otherwise than in respect of that financial period or
which shall not constitute a liability or loss.

The fiabilities in respect of the undertakings listed below, which have arisen in respect of the financial period
ended on 27 July 2019, are already included within the Group’s consolidated balance sheet.

Billcrest Products Limited

Green Isle Foods (Boyle) Limited

Beverley House Food Group Limited (formally known as Green |sle Food Group Limited)
Green Isle Foods Portumna Limited

Green lsle Group Services Limited

Poldy's Fresh Foods Limited

Green lsle Foods {Longford)

Green Isle Pastry Limited

76



BOPARAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the 52 weeks ended 27 July 2019

31. Contingent liabilities (continued)

For the period ending 27 July 2019 the subsidiaries of the Company listed below were entitled to
exemption from audit under s479A of the Companies Act 2006 relating to subsidiary companies.

Company name

2 Sister Food Services Limited
Challenger Foods Limited
Dreamphoto Limited

Dreamplayer Limited

Dressadmire Limited

Ethnic Cuisine Limited

Island Wharf (100) Limited

Island Wharf (300) Limited

John Rannoch Limited

Joseph Mitchell (Letham) Limited
Lloyd Maunder Limited

Melwood Investments Limited
Northern Foods American Holdings Limited
Narthern Foods Finance Limited
Scot-Lad Limited
Beverley House {9000} Limited
Beverley House Investments Limited
Boparan Foods Limited

Cavaghan and Gray Group Limited
Farnsworth Investments Limited

BH Acquisitions Limited

Northern Foods Grocery Group Limited
Solway Foods Limited

Cavaghan & Gray Limited

FW Farmsworth Limited

R. & K. Wige Limited

Solway Foods Holding Limited
Bakery Foods Limited

Oakhco Limited

Caompany registration humber
03475845
04274510
03055258
03055268
03055284
02764810
04541503
04541512
00277563
30034227
00234992
00755925
00045394
03945309
80170045
00772317
02475726
03188828
01357837
02475724
07495745
00313761
02189139
00159189
00255912
00386864
029300186
11913736
11913434

2 Sisters Fish Limited {formerly known as Five Star Fish Limited) 072088651

2 Sisters Poultry Limited
Convenience Foods Limited

5440782
02226886
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31.  Contingent liabilities (continued)

The liabilities in respect of the undertakings listed above, which have arisen in respect of the financial
period ended on 27 July 2019, are already included within the Group’s consolidated balance sheet.

32. Related party transactions

The Group has taken advantage of the exemption under FRS 102 Section 33.1A ‘Related Party Disclosures’
and has not disclosed transactions or balances between wholly owned subsidiary undertakings.

Related party transactions for the 52 weeks ended 27 July 2019, and the 52 weeks ended 28 July 2018 are
shown below:

52 52
weeks weeks
ended ended

27 July 28 July

2019 2018

Amber RE] Holdings Limited and subsidiaries £m £m
Relationship: Related by virtue of common ownership
Charges received from Amber REI Holdings:
Rental charges 3.2 6.2
Property service charges 0.2 0.8
Equipment rental charges 0.8 0.8
Equipment service charges 0.1 0.2
Purchases made by the Group 29 -
Qutstanding creditar at the period end 1.3 0.4
Amotunts charged fo Amber REf Holdings:
Service charges 0.1 0.1
Hook 2 Sisters Limited
Relationship: The Group hold a 50% investment in the company
Loans made to the related party (Repayabie 9th Feb 2020) 3.3 3.3
Purchases made by the Group 671.2 626.8
Outstanding creditor at the petiod end 50.1 39.7
Group recharges to the related party - 0.1
Qutstanding debtor at the period end - 0.1
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J2. Related Party Transactions (Continued)

2 Agriculture Limited

Relationship: Related by virtue of common ownership
Sales made to the related party

Qutstanding debtor at the period end

Storteboom Hamrol Sp Z.o.0.

Rslationship: Related by virtue of a 96% indirect ownership
Sales made to the related party

Outstanding debtor at the period end

1 Stop Halal and subsidiaries

Relationship: Related by virtue of common ownership
Purchases made by the Group

Outstanding creditor at the period end

Group service charges to the related party
Sales made to the related party

Qutstanding debtor at the period end

Noblesse Proteins Investments B.V

Relationship: The Group hold a 26% investment in the comparty

Sales made to the related party
Qutstanding debtor at the pericd end

52
weeks
ended

27 July
2019

£m

0.2

11

1.9
0.2
0.4

1.9
1.4

52
weeks
ended

28 July
2018

£m

0.3

0.3
0.2

2.7
0.1

2.5

0.2

2.0
1.3
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32. Related Party Transactions (Continued)

Food Utopia
Relationship: Related by virtue of common ownership
Sales made to the related party

QOutstanding debtor at the period end

Boparan Charitable Trust

Relationship: Related by virtue of common ownership
Donations made by the Group

Outstanding creditor at the period end

Buffaload Limited

Relationship: Related by virtue of common ownership
Purchases made by the Group

Outstanding creditor at the period end

Lakeside Food Group Limited

Relationship: Related by virtue of common ownership
Purchases made by the Group

QOutstanding creditor at the period end

Sales made to the related party
Outstanding debtor at the period end

Bernard Matthews Food Limited

Relationship: Related by virtue of common ownership
Purchases made by the Group

QOutstanding creditor at the period end

Sales made to the reiated party
Qutstanding debtor at the period end

52
weeks
ended

27 July
2019

£m

9.2
0.1

7.2
1.4

52
weeks
ended

28 July
2018

£m

3.3
1.1

0.1
0.1

0.1

1.8
0.1

0.2

17.5
1.4

2.3
0.5
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32. Related Party Transactions (Continued)

52 52
weeks weeks
ended ended

27 Jduly 28 July

2019 2018
Crawshaw Buichers Limited £fm £m
Relationship: Related by virtue of common ownership
Sales made to the related party 0.5 0.3
Qutstanding debtor at the peried end - 0.2

Key management personnel include all directors and a number of senicr managers across the Group who
together have authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group.
The total compensation paid to key management personnel for services provided to the Group was £9.3m
{28 July 2018; £8.7m).

33. Ultimate controlling party

Boparan Midco Limited is the immediate parent of the Group and R S Boparan and B K Boparan are the
ultimate controlling parties.

Boparan Holdco Limited is the smallest and largest group into which the Group is consolidated. Their
registered address is Colmore Court, 8 Colmere Row, Birmingham, B3 2BJ.
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